AGENDA

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF MORTON, ILLINOIS

7:00 P.M.
MONDAY, NOVEMBER 5, 2018
FREEDOM HALL, 349 W. BIRCHWOOD, MORTON, ILLINOIS

VI.

VII.

VIII.

XI.

XII.
XII1I.
XIV.
XV.

XVI.

XVII.

XVIII.
XIX.
XX.

CALL TO ORDER

ROLL CALL

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG
PUBLIC HEARING

PRESENTATIONS AND SPECIAL REPORTS
A. Presentation by Wolf, Tesar & Co. on the Audited Financial Statements for the Fiscal Year Ending
April 30, 2018.

B. Morton Economic Development Council Update.

PUBLIC COMMENT
A. Public Comments
B. Requests for Removal of Items from the Consent Agenda

CONSENT AGENDA
A. Approval of Minutes

1. Regular Meeting — October 15, 2018
B. Approval of Bills

CONSIDERATION OF ITEMS REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT AGENDA
VILLAGE PRESIDENT
VILLAGE CLERK

VILLAGE ADMINISTRATOR
A. Overview of Health, Dental & Life Insurance Estimated Cost for 2019.

B. Overview of Property & Liability, Workers Compensation, and Cyber Liability Insurance for December 1,
2018 through December 1, 2019.
CHIEF OF POLICE

CORPORATION COUNSEL
DIRECTOR OF FIRE AND EMERGENCY SERVICES

DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS

A. Resolution 14-19 — A Resolution Authorizing the Purchase of Natural Gas from PEFA, Inc.; Approving the
Execution and Delivery of a Gas Supply Agreement and Other Documents Relating to Said Purchase;
Approving the Issuance of Bonds by PEFA, Inc.; and Addressing Related Matters.

B. Resolution 15-19 — A Resolution Authorizing Amendment to Natural Gas Management Agreement
Regarding the Purchase of Natural Gas from PEFA, Inc.

PLANNING AND ZONING OFFICER

A. Special Use Petition No. 18-09 SP — 138 and 140 S. Main St.

B. Special Use Petition No. 18-10 SP — 4001 W. Jackson St.

VILLAGE TRUSTEES

Trustee Belsley

Trustee Blunier

Trustee Leman

Trustee Heer

Trustee Newman

Trustee Parrott

CLOSED SESSIONS
CONSIDERATION OF MATTERS ARISING FROM CLOSED SESSIONS
ADJOURNMENT

mEoOw>

Agenda
Regular Meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Village of Morton, Illinois
Monday, November 5, 2018
Page 1 of 1




VILLAGE BOARD OF TRUSTEES
REGULAR MEETING
7:00 P.M., OCTOBER 15, 2018

After calling the meeting to order, President Kaufman led the Pledge of Allegiance. The Clerk
called the roll, with the following members present: Blunier, Heer, Leman, Parrott — 4.

PUBLIC HEARING — None.

PRESENTATIONS — Morton School District 709 Superintendent Jeffrey Hill gave an overview
presentation on the upcoming Facility Sales Tax Referendum that will be on the November 2018
ballot.

PUBLIC COMMENT - Troy Saunders of 207 Stonecrop spoke about an incident with a
woman who was misled by an energy supplier into changing her provider and over time ended
up with much higher electrical bills. He wanted to make the Board and the public aware of the
situations like this and encourage everyone to do due diligence before making any decisions to
switch providers.

CONSENT AGENDA
A. Approval of Minutes.
1. Regular Meeting — October 1, 2018
B. Approval of Bills

Trustee Heer moved to approve the Consent Agenda. Motion was seconded by Trustee Leman
and approved with the following roll call vote:

Yes: Blunier, Heer, Leman, Parrott — 4.
No: None.
Absent: Belsley, Newman.

VILLAGE PRESIDENT

President Kaufman requested approval of the appointment of Jason Scarfe to the Business
District Commission to fill a vacant position with a term expiring April 30, 2020. Trustee Heer
moved to approve. Motion was seconded by Trustee Parrott and approved with the following roll
call vote:

Yes: Blunier, Heer, Leman, Parrott — 4.
No: None.
Absent: Belsley, Newman.

VILLAGE ADMINISTRATOR

Administrator Smick presented Resolution 13-19, a resolution authorizing changes to the annual
funding calculation and property tax levy for the Morton Police Pension Fund. She gave a
detailed overview and noted that the resolution would increase the growth of the fund and would
revise the calculation to attain 100% funded status by 2040. Trustee Parrott moved to approve.
Motion was seconded by Trustee Heer and approved with the following roll call vote:

Yes: Blunier, Heer, Leman, Parrott — 4.
No: None.
Absent: Belsley, Newman.



Administrator Smick then presented a building improvement grant recommendation from the
Business District Commission. She noted that the grant is for Andris Dental at 636 W. Jefferson
and that the grant amount would be $10,000 for signage, landscaping, handicap doors, and
concrete replacement. Trustee Parrott moved to approve. Motion was seconded by Trustee
Leman and approved with the following roll call vote:

Yes: Blunier, Heer, Leman, Parrott — 4.
No: None.
Absent: Belsley, Newman.

Administrator Smick then presented a proposal for payment of a landscaping project at the US
Post Office at 600 W. Jefferson from Business District Funds. She explained that the business
district had a tie vote on recommending the funding, and Trustee Parrott gave an overview of the
project, noting that it would substantially improve the landscaping which is badly needed and
unlikely to be funded by the federal government any higher than $2,500, which would be put
toward the project, with $14,200 coming from Business District funds. Trustee Parrott moved to
approve. Motion was seconded by Trustee Blunier and approved with the following roll call
vote:

Yes: Blunier, Heer, Leman, Parrott — 4.
No: None.
Absent: Belsley, Newman.

CHIEF OF POLICE

Chief Hilliard presented the 2018 Pumpkin Festival Police Department Expenses. He noted that
this year’s expenses were slightly less than last year and that one of the reasons was the lack of
extra dispatchers directly on the Village payroll since the consolidation of the Tazewell County
dispatch centers. Trustee Leman moved to approve. Motion was seconded by Trustee Heer and
approved with the following roll call vote:

Yes: Blunier, Heer, Leman, Parrott — 4.
No: None.
Absent: Belsley, Newman.

DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS

DPW Loudermilk requested acceptance of proposal from EN Engineering (Chicago, IL) for an
alternating current (AC) mitigation study for the existing 8” gas pipeline in the amount of
$19,000.00. He gave a detailed overview and explained that there are some areas of bubbling that
could be of concern and that this study would determine possibilities to fix the issues of concern,
hopefully for the next fiscal year. Trustee Heer moved to approve. Motion was seconded by
Trustee Parrott and approved with the following roll call vote:

Yes: Blunier, Heer, Leman, Parrott — 4.
No: None.
Absent: Belsley, Newman.

PLANNING AND ZONING OFFICER

PZO Spangler gave an overview of another solar farm being proposed to the Tazewell County
Zoning Board from Cypress Creek Renewables and introduced individuals from the company
who gave a presentation on the proposed project.



VILLAGE TRUSTEES
BLUNIER — Nothing to report.

HEER — Nothing to report.
LEMAN — Nothing to report.
PARROTT — Nothing to report.

AJOURNMENT
With no further business to come before the Board, Trustee Parrott moved to adjourn. Motion
was seconded by Trustee Heer and followed by a unanimous voice vote.

ATTEST:

PRESIDENT

VILLAGE CLERK



RESOLUTION NO. 14-19

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF NATURAL
GAS FROM PEFA, INC.; APPROVING THE EXECUTION AND
DELIVERY OF A GAS SUPPLY AGREEMENT AND OTHER
DOCUMENTS RELATING TO SAID PURCHASE; APPROVING THE
ISSUANCE OF BONDS BY PEFA, INC.; AND ADDRESSING RELATED
MATTERS

WHEREAS, the Village is desirous of proceeding with a gas purchase transaction as
further described herein; and

WHEREAS, PEFA, Inc. is a non-profit corporation duly organized and existing under
the laws of the State of lowa and, in particular, lowa Code Chapter 504, as amended from time
to time; and

WHEREAS, PEFA, Inc. has planned and developed a project to acquire long-term gas
supplies from J. Aron & Company LLC, a New York limited liability company and an affiliate
of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., pursuant to a Prepaid Natural Gas Sales Agreement, to
meet a portion of the requirements of the Village of Morton, Illinois (the "Gas Purchaser"), and
other public gas distribution systems that elect to participate (each, a "Project Participant", and
collectively, the "Project Participants") through a prepayment (the "Prepaid Project"); and

WHEREAS, PEFA, Inc. will issue its Gas Project Revenue Bonds, Series 2018 (the
"PEFA, Inc. Bonds") to finance the acquisition of gas supplies under the Prepaid Project; and

WHEREAS, PEFA, Inc. will sell all the gas purchased under the Prepaid Project to the
Project Participants; and

WHEREAS, Gas Purchaser is a public body and political subdivision organized and
existing under and by virtue of the constitution and laws of the State of Illinois, acting by and
through its Village Board of the Village of Morton, Illinois for and on behalf of its municipal
gas utility; and

WHEREAS, Gas Purchaser has determined that it is in the best interest of its customers
to be a Project Participant and thereby purchase a portion of Gas Purchaser's natural gas
requirements from PEFA, Inc. pursuant to a natural gas supply contract to be entered into by
PEFA, Inc. and Gas Purchaser (the "Gas Supply Agreement"); and

WHEREAS, under the Gas Supply Agreement, Gas Purchaser will agree to purchase
from PEFA, Inc. the amounts of gas specified in the Gas Supply Agreement, at the prices
specified in the Gas Supply Agreement, for a term specified in the Gas Supply Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the PEFA, Inc. Bonds will be issued pursuant to a Trust Indenture between

METI 28229525v.1



PEFA, Inc. and a corporate trustee (the "Indenture") and purchased by the underwriters or
original purchasers of the PEFA, Inc. Bonds (the "Underwriters") pursuant to one or more bond
purchase agreements or similar agreements; and

WHEREAS, PEFA, Inc. will pledge to the payment of the PEFA, Inc. Bonds certain
assets of PEFA, Inc., including the Gas Supply Agreement between PEFA, Inc. and Gas
Purchaser; and

WHEREAS, Gas Purchaser shall have no financial liability with respect to the PEFA,
Inc. Bonds, and Gas Purchaser's only obligations relating to the Prepaid Project herein shall be
as set forth in the Gas Supply Agreement; and

WHEREAS, in order to authorize the purchase of natural gas from PEFA, Inc. and the
execution of the Gas Supply Agreement, to consent to the pledge of the Gas Supply Agreement
to secure the PEFA, Inc. Bonds, to authorize the sale of the gas purchased from PEFA, Inc., and
to authorize and take such other necessary and appropriate action in furtherance of the Prepaid
Project, Gas Purchaser adopts this Resolution.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the Village Board of the Village
of Morton, Illinois (the "Governing Body"), as follows:

SECTION 1: Gas Purchaser is authorized to enter into a Gas Supply Agreement with
PEFA, Inc., pursuant to which Gas Purchaser will purchase natural gas from PEFA, Inc.
as provided in the Gas Supply Agreement. The Gas Supply Agreement shall (a) have a
term of not greater than 366 months, (b) provide for the purchase by Gas Purchaser of
not more than 4,000 MMBtu per day, and (c¢) provide for a projected minimum savings
(prior to payment of the project administration fee as set forth in the Gas Supply
Agreement) through monthly and annual discounts of not less than 30 cents per MMBtu
to Gas Purchaser for the initial rate period and not less than 24 cents per MMBtu in any
reset period, unless Gas Purchaser elects to purchase gas at a lesser discount during any
reset period, as set forth in the Gas Supply Agreement. Gas Purchaser’s obligation to
make payments under the Gas Supply Agreement shall be an operating expense of its
municipal gas utility, and is payable solely from the revenues of its gas system and other
monies legally available, and is not a general obligation of the Village or a debt or
charge against the Village within the meaning of any constitutional or statutory debt
limit provision.

SECTION 2: The Gas Supply Agreement shall be in substantially the form submitted
and attached hereto as Exhibit A, which such form is hereby approved, with such
completions, deletions, insertions, revisions, and other changes as may be approved by
the officers executing same with the advice of counsel, their execution to constitute
conclusive evidence of their approval of any such changes.

SECTION 3: The gas purchased by Gas Purchaser from PEFA, Inc. shall be resold by

MEI 28229525v.1



Gas Purchaser to its retail customers in its service area, pursuant to published tariffs or
pursuant to qualified requirements contracts approved by special tax counsel to PEFA,
Inc.

SECTION 4: The Village President (the "Authorized Officer") is hereby authorized to
execute and deliver the Gas Supply Agreement and the Village Clerk (the "Attesting
Officer") is hereby authorized to attest the Gas Supply Agreement.

SECTION 5: The officers, employees, and agents of Gas Purchaser (including, without
limitation, Utility Gas Management) are hereby authorized and directed to take such
actions and do all things necessary to cause the purchase of said gas to take place,
including the payment of all amounts required to be paid in order to purchase the gas in
accordance with the Gas Supply Agreement.

SECTION 6: The Governing Body approves the Prepaid Project undertaken by PEFA,
Inc. and the portion of the PEFA, Inc. Bonds issued by PEFA, Inc. on behalf of the Gas
Purchaser, and consents to the pledge of all of PEFA, Inc.’s right, title and interest under
the Gas Supply Agreement, including the right to receive performance by Gas Purchaser
of its obligations thereunder, to secure the payment of principal of and interest on the
PEFA, Inc. Bonds.

SECTION 7: The officers and employees of Gas Purchaser, as well as any other agent or
representative of Gas Purchaser (including, without limitation, Utility Gas Management),
are hereby authorized and directed to cooperate with and provide PEFA, Inc., the
underwriters of the PEFA, Inc. Bonds, and their agents and representatives with such
information relating to Gas Purchaser as is necessary for use in the preparation and
distribution of a preliminary official statement or other disclosure document used in
connection with the sale of the PEFA, Inc. Bonds. After the PEFA, Inc. Bonds have been
sold, any officer or employee of Gas Purchaser, or any agent or representative designated
by Gas Purchaser, shall make such completions, deletions, insertions, revisions, and other
changes in the preliminary official statement relating to Gas Purchaser not inconsistent
with this Resolution as are necessary or desirable to complete it as a final official
statement for purposes of Rule 15¢2-12 of the Securities and Exchange Commission (the
"Rule"). The Governing Body hereby covenants and agrees that Gas Purchaser will
cooperate with PEFA, Inc. in the discharge of PEFA, Inc.’s obligations to provide annual
financial and operating information and notification as to material events with respect to
Gas Purchaser as may be required by the Rule. Any officer or any employee of Gas
Purchaser, or such other agent or representative of Gas Purchaser as shall be appropriate
(including, without limitation, Utility Gas Management), is hereby authorized and
directed to provide such information as shall be required for such compliance, and such
officer or employee may execute a continuing disclosure agreement with respect to the
provision of such information if requested to do so by the underwriters of the PEFA, Inc.
Bonds.

SECTION 8: The PEFA, Inc. Bonds are not obligations of Gas Purchaser but are special

3

MEI 28229525v.1



limited obligations of PEFA, Inc. payable solely from the revenues and receipts pledged
by PEFA, Inc. under the Indenture, including the revenues and receipts arising from the
sale of gas to Project Participants. By consenting to the pledge of the Gas Supply
Agreement and agreeing to provide information for inclusion in the official statement,
Gas Purchaser is not incurring any financial liability with respect to the PEFA, Inc.
Bonds. The principal, redemption price and purchase price (to the extent payable by
PEFA, Inc. upon tender for purchase in accordance with the provisions of the financing
documents authorizing issuance of the PEFA, Inc. Bonds, or any loan agreement, trust
agreement or other agreements of PEFA, Inc. required thereby (the "Financing
Documents")) of the PEFA, Inc. Bonds and the interest thereon, shall be payable solely
from, and secured solely by, the revenues, funds and other assets of PEFA, Inc. pledged
therefor under the applicable Financing Documents and shall not constitute a special or
general obligation of the Village, or a charge against the general credit or other funds of
the Village. The PEFA, Inc. Bonds shall not be secured by a legal or equitable pledge of,
or lien or charge upon or security interest in, any property of the Village or any of its
income or receipts. Neither the faith and credit nor the taxing power of the State of lowa
(the "State") or the Village or any other public agency shall be pledged to the payment of
the principal, redemption price or purchase price of, or the interest on, the PEFA, Inc.
Bonds. The issuance by PEFA, Inc. of the PEFA, Inc. Bonds shall not directly, indirectly
or contingently obligate the State, or the Village or any other public agency, to levy or
pledge any form of taxation or to make any appropriation for the payment of the PEFA,
Inc. Bonds. The payment of the principal, redemption price or purchase price of, or
interest on, the PEFA, Inc. Bonds shall not constitute a debt, liability or obligation of the
State, the Village, or any other public agency.

SECTION 9: All acts and doings of the officers and employees of Gas Purchaser or any
other agent or representative of Gas Purchaser which are in conformity with the purposes
and intent of this Resolution and in furtherance of the execution and delivery of and
performance under the Gas Supply Agreement, and in furtherance of the issuance and
sale of the PEFA, Inc. Bonds, shall be and the same hereby are in all respects approved
and confirmed, including without limitation the execution and delivery by the officers of
Gas Purchaser of all certificates and documents as they shall deem necessary in
connection with the Gas Supply Agreement and the PEFA, Inc. Bonds.

SECTION 10. The Village Board understands and agrees that Ahlers & Cooney, P.C,
represents PEFA, Inc., in connection with the Gas Supply Agreement, the PEFA, Inc.
Bonds, and associated documents and transactions, and, hereby consents to such
representation and to the extent such representation might be an actual, potential, or
perceived conflict of interest, the Village Board waives any such conflict and consents to
said representation.

SECTION 11: If any section, paragraph or provision of this Resolution shall be held to
be invalid or unenforceable for any reason, the invalidity or unenforceability of such
section, paragraph or provision shall not affect any of the remaining provisions of this
Resolution.

MEI 28229525v.1



SECTION 12: All other resolutions or orders, or parts thereof, in conflict with the
provisions of this Resolution are, to the extent of such conflict, hereby repealed and this

Resolution shall be in immediate effect from and after its adoption.

SECTION 13: This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption.
PASSED AND APPROVED this 5th day of November, 2018.

Village President
ATTEST:
Village Clerk
(SEAL)
5

MEI 28229525v.1



CERTIFICATE

State of Illinois )
) SS
COUNTY OF Tazewell )

I, the undersigned Village Clerk of the Village Board of the Village of Morton, State of
Illinois, do hereby certify that attached is a true and complete copy of the portion of the corporate
records of the Village showing proceedings of the Village Board, and the same is a true and
complete copy of the action taken by the Village Board with respect to the matter at the meeting
held on the date indicated in the attachment, which proceedings remain in full force and effect,
and have not been amended or rescinded in any way; that meeting and all action thereat was duly
and publicly held in accordance with a notice of meeting and tentative agenda, a copy of which
was timely served on each member of the Village Board and posted on a bulletin board or other
prominent place easily accessible to the public and clearly designated for that purpose at the
principal office of the Village Board (a copy of the face sheet of the agenda being attached
hereto) pursuant to the local rules of the Village Board, upon reasonable advance notice to the
public and media prior to the commencement of the meeting as required by law and with
members of the public present in attendance; I further certify that the individuals named therein
were on the date thereof duly and lawfully possessed of their respective offices as indicated
therein, that no Village Board vacancy existed except as may be stated in the proceedings, and
that no controversy or litigation is pending, prayed or threatened involving the incorporation,
organization, existence or boundaries of the Village or the right of the individuals named therein
as officers to their respective positions.

WITNESS my hand and the seal of the Village hereto affixed this 5th day of November,
2018.

Village Clerk, Village of Morton, State of
Illinois
(SEAL)

MEI 28229525v.1



FORM OF GAS SUPPLY AGREEMENT

[Attached]

MEI 28229525v.1



DRAFT ONLY UNTIL VOLUMES INPUT AND FINALIZED

GAS SUPPLY AGREEMENT

BY AND BETWEEN

PEFA, INC.

AND

[PROJECT PARTICIPANT]

DATED AS OF , 2018

MEI 28229525v.1



DRAFT FORM OF GAS SUPPLY AGREEMENT

OCTOBER 2018
TABLE OF CONTENTS

HEADING PAGE
PREAMBLE ...ttt ettt ettt et e st e s st e b e e st et e enseeneesseenseeneesneenseensenseens 1
RECITALS oottt ettt ettt et e e s et e et e s st e sseenseesee s e enseeneesseenseensenseenseensenseens 1
ARTICLE I DEFINITIONS AND CONSTRUCTION ....uuccvierisecserssensaessasssessanssssssessssssasssassas 2
1.1.  Construction of the AGreement..........cccveeiiieeiiieeiireeiie e eeee e 2
L.2. DETINITIONS. .eeutiiiieiieieeiiesteete ettt et sttt et et sb et see et et eseenbeennes 2
ARTICLE II SERVICE OBLIGATIONS......ccccecvereurrcrcnrecsannes 12
2.1, GAS SUPPLY SEIVICE ...uviiiiieiieiiiieiieeie ettt ettt et e e esaeenaeens 12
2.2.  Nature of the Prepaid Project.........cocoeviviiriieeiiieecie e 13
ARTICLE III RECEIPT AND DELIVERY POINTS ...ccccervinninrensinsenssesssessanssessansssssesssessass 13
3.1, DeliVEry POINt ....cooiiiiiiieiie ettt e e e e en 13
320 Transfer Of Tt ....ooiiiiiiiiiiiceee e e 13
ARTICLE 1V PRICING OF GAS SUPPLY SERVICES 14
4.1.  Charge Per MMBtu Delivered...........oooieiiiiiiieiiieiiecieeieee e 14
4.2, INAEX PIICE ...ttt 14
4.3.  Project Administration FEE .........ccoovviiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeiieiece et 14
4.4.  Assistance with Sales to Third Parties ............cooceeiiiiiiiiiiniiiieeece 15
4.5, Annual RefUNS .....ooiiiiiiiiiic e 16

ARTICLE V TERM 16
5.1 Primary TeIM....ocuiiiiiiiiieii ettt sttt e e 16
5.2.  Early Termination Before End of Primary Term...........ccoccooiiiiininiinninnenn. 17
5.3. Remarketing Election; Suspension and Resumption of Deliveries. ..................... 17
54.  WiInding Up AITangEmMENLS. ......cccueeerieeeiieeeriieeeiieesiieesseeesseeessseeessseessssessnsseesnnes 20

i

MEI 28229525v.1



DRAFT FORM OF GAS SUPPLY AGREEMENT

OCTOBER 2018

ARTICLE VI FAILURE TO PERFORM......cuioinvinnuinseinrensuissnissessnsssnssesssssssssesssssssssssssssssass 20
6.1.  Cost of Replacement Gas..........cccouieeiiiieeiiieeeiieeeieeeieeesreeesveeeseveeeeaee e e enaee e 20

6.2.  Obligation to Take the Daily Quantity...........ccccceeeuieriiiiiienieiiieieeieeee e 20

6.3.  No Consequential or Special Damages..........ccceeeeuieeeiriieriiieeniie e e e e 21

6.4, TMDALANCES ....eoutiiiiiiieiiee e et 21
ARTICLE VII RESPONSIBILITY FOR TRANSPORTATION 22
ARTICLE VIII DELIVERY REQUIREMENTS.......ccovinvnninrnnnsensissanssesssessassssssasssssssssssssass 22
T BRI 0 1SToa 1 (1218 (o) 4 1< SRS 22

8.2, PIESSUIE .eeiuiiiiiiieeet ettt ettt et et sttt e naees 22

8.3 IMEASUTCIMENT . .....eeiiiiieeiitee ettt ettt e it s bt e st e st e e sbeeesaneees 22
ARTICLE IX TITLE AND RISK OF LOSS ..uuoiiiiniininninsnnsensansssnsssssssssasssssssssssssssssssssas 23
ARTICLE X ROYALTIES AND TAXES....ccccevvecsuecsersecsanens 23
10.1. Royalties and Other Charges ..........ccoeoueeriieiieiie et 23

JO.2.  TAXES  eeeeeiiieeiiieeeee ettt ettt ettt e e e ettt e ab e s bt s bt e et eenneee e 23
ARTICLE XI BILLING AND PAYMENT ...cuuiivinrinnuinsensensnisssnssesssesssnssesssessssssssssssssssssssssssass 24
P N I 551133V 24

I11.2. Late PAYMENT ....ooiiiiiiiiiiiiiie ettt et et e et st esaae e 24

11.30 AUt RIGIES .ottt e 25

11.4. Operating Expense of Gas Purchaser.............coccoeiiiiiiiiiiniiiiiceeeecee 25

11.5. Financial ReSpOnSIibIlitY........cccviiiiiiiiiiieiiie e e e 26

T1.6. INO Set-Off....eiiiiie ettt 27
ARTICLE XII LAWS AND REGULATIONS .....ccccceneeruecsersancanens 27
ARTICLE XIII FORCE MAJEURE ......cuuiininseininsaisstissesssisssissessassssisssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssass 27
13.1.  Suspension Of ODIIAtIONS ........cccciiieiiieeiiieeiee et eeee e esee e e ee e ens 27

13.2. Force Majeure Defined ..........cooouiiiiiiiiiiiieiceceee e 27

MEI 28229525v.1

il



DRAFT FORM OF GAS SUPPLY AGREEMENT

OCTOBER 2018

13.3. Force Majeure EXCIUSIONS........ccciiiiiiiiiiiiieiieeie et 28

13.4. Settlement of Labor DIiSPULES.......ccueeeiiieeiiieeiiieciieeciee ettt 29

13.5. Force Majeure Procedure.............coooueeiiiiiieiiienieeiiece et 29
ARTICLE XIV DEFAULT ....cooiinicntisensnecsnnssesssncssnsasssessssssssssssssans 29
14.1. Failure by Gas Purchaser to Make Payments Due...........cccccoeevieriieiiienieciienne, 29

14.2. Enforcement and Right to Discontinue Service.........cccceevuveerreeerieeenieeeieeeiieenns 29

14.3. Reinstatement Of SETVICE ........ccoirieriiriiiinieieeeeeeeeee e 30

14.4. Other Default by Gas PUrchaser ..........cccecvveeiiieiciiiicieceeccee e 30

14.5. Default by PEFA, INC. ....cooiiiiiiiiieiieeteeeeseee ettt 30

14.6. Arbitration and Mediation............coouiiiiiiiiiiienie e 31

14.7. Third Party BenefiCiaries .........ccccverieeciieriieiieeie ettt 31
ARTICLE XV PROJECT MANAGEMENT AND ADMINISTRATION 31
ARTICLE XVI WAILVERS ...cuuiiiriiintineisinsninsnssssssssssnsssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssas 32
ARTICLE XVII SUCCESSION AND ASSIGNMENT 32
ARTICLE XVIII NOTICES.....couiiiiiiuinseisenssissasssessscssssssesssisssssssssassssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssass 33
ARTICLE XIX CHOICE OF LAW.....cuuninicecececnees 34
ARTICLE XX MODIFICATIONS ....uciniiriirensinsnnsesssesssnssesssesssssssssassssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssas 35
ARTICLE XXI COMPUTATIONS.....ccceevrurruecreceeecaees 35
ARTICLE XXII REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES......ccccvvininrensensussensassansassnees 35
22.1. Representations and Warranties of PEFA, INC..........ccccccoeviiiniiniiiinieeieeee e 35

22.2. Representations and Warranties of Gas Purchaser ............c.ccoceveevieieeeeccieennen. 36

ARTICLE XXIII CERTAIN OBLIGATIONS WITH RESPECT TO PEFA, INC.’S

23.1.

23.2.

MEI 28229525v.1

BONDS....cotitiiitinennensicsnsennssnesssssessessessessassees 37
Tax-Exempt Status of BondS ........cccooveeiiiiiiiiieiecieceece e 37
ContinuIng DISCLOSUIE ......cocuviiiiiiiiieiieeie e 38

il



DRAFT FORM OF GAS SUPPLY AGREEMENT

OCTOBER 2018

ARTICLE XXIV EXCHANGES.....cooiintininnninsnisenssisssnssessssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssas 38
24. 1. General RULE ......coouiiiiiii et 38
24.2. Description of Exchange Agreement..........ccccevueeriieiiieniieniiienieeieeee e 38
24.3. Exchange Transactions Through a Third Party ..........cccceeeveiieiiieeciieiceeeieeee, 39

ARTICLE XXV INTERPRETATION .......ccvceeverruecsuccennnes 39
25.1. Entirety of AreemeNnt........cc.ceeiuiiiiiiiieiiieeeiie et eetee et e e e aeeeae e eaaeeeeae s 39
25.2. HEAAINES ..veoviieiiiiiieeiieeie ettt ettt et ettt e st e e bt e s beeseeenbeeseesnbeesaesnsaens 39
25.3.  SEVEIADIIILY .uvieeiiieciiie e e e e e eeeaae s 39
254, Limited Liability ....ccooviiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeee e 40

ARTICLE XXVI COUNTERPARTS......cccceeverruecrursuecnees 41

EXHIBIT A PRIMARY DELIVERY POINT

EXHIBIT B DAILY CONTRACT QUANTITIES

EXHIBIT C PROJECT PARTICIPANTS AND THEIR AVERAGE DAILY CONTRACT

QUANTITIES

EXHIBIT D FEDERAL TAX CERTIFICATE

EXHIBIT E FORM OF OPINION OF COUNSEL TO PEFA, INC.

EXHIBIT F FORM OF OPINION OF COUNSEL TO GAS PURCHASER

EXHIBIT G FORM OF REMARKETING ELECTION NOTICE

EXHIBIT H FORM OF CLOSING CERTIFICATE

v

MEI 28229525v.1



DRAFT FORM OF GAS SUPPLY AGREEMENT

OCTOBER 2018
GAS SUPPLY AGREEMENT
PREAMBLE
This Gas Supply Agreement, dated as of 1, 2018 (the "Agreement"), is made and

entered into by and between [Project Participant], a [municipal corporation/gas district/ municipal
utility/etc.] created and existing under the laws of the State of ("Gas Purchaser"), and PEFA,
Inc., a non-profit corporation duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of [owa and, in
particular, Iowa Code Chapter 504, as amended from time to time (the "Act"). Gas Purchaser and PEFA,
Inc. are sometimes hereinafter referred to in this Agreement collectively as the "Parties" or individually as
a "Party".
RECITALS

WHEREAS, Gas Purchaser provides natural gas supply and distribution service to commercial,
residential, governmental, and industrial customers in its areas of service; and

WHEREAS, PEFA, Inc. has planned and developed a project to acquire long-term Gas supplies
from J. Aron & Company LLC, a New York limited liability company ("J. Aron") and a wholly-owned
subsidiary of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., pursuant to a Prepaid Natural Gas Sales Agreement, dated
as of , 2018 (the "Prepaid Gas Agreement"), to meet a portion of the Gas supply requirements
of the Gas Purchaser and other public gas distribution systems that elect to participate (together, the
"Project Participants") through a gas prepayment project (the "Project"); and

WHEREAS, Gas Purchaser and the other Project Participants have elected to enter into
agreements with PEFA, Inc. for the purchase of Gas supplies from the Prepaid Project (each a "Project
Participant Agreement"); and

WHEREAS, Gas Purchaser desires to enter into an agreement with PEFA, Inc. for the purchase
of Gas supplies from the Prepaid Project; and

WHEREAS, PEFA, Inc. will finance the prepayment under, and the other costs of, the Prepaid

Project by issuing Bonds on behalf of the Project Participants; and

MEI 28229525v.1



DRAFT FORM OF GAS SUPPLY AGREEMENT
OCTOBER 2018

WHEREAS, Gas Purchaser is agreeable to purchasing a portion of its Gas requirements from
PEFA, Inc. under the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement and PEFA, Inc. is agreeable to
selling to Gas Purchaser such supplies of Gas under the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement;
and

WHEREAS, as a condition precedent to the effectiveness of the Parties’ obligations under this
Agreement, PEFA, Inc. shall have entered into the Prepaid Gas Agreement and shall have issued the
Bonds.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and mutual covenants set forth in this
Agreement and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby
acknowledged, PEFA, Inc. and Gas Purchaser agree as follows.

ARTICLE I

DEFINITIONS AND CONSTRUCTION

1.1.  Construction of the Agreement. The Preamble and the Recitals set forth above are

incorporated into this Agreement for all purposes. References to Articles, Sections, and Exhibits
throughout this Agreement are references to the corresponding Articles, Sections, and Exhibits of this
Agreement unless otherwise specified. All Exhibits are incorporated into this Agreement for all purposes.
References to the singular are intended to include the plural and vice versa. The word "including" and
related forms thereof are intended to be interpreted inclusively, whether or not the phrase "but not limited
to" follows such word or words. The words "will" and "shall" indicate mandatory requirements of the

Parties except in the Recitals.

1.2.  Definitions. Unless another definition is expressly stated in this Agreement, the
following terms and abbreviations, when used in this Agreement, are intended to and shall mean as

follows:

(a) "Act" is defined in the Preamble.

(b) "Agreement" is defined in the Preamble.
2

MEI 28229525v.1



DRAFT FORM OF GAS SUPPLY AGREEMENT

OCTOBER 2018
(c) "Alternate Delivery Point" has the meaning specified in Section 3.1.
(d) "Annual Refund" means the annual refund, if any, provided to the Gas

Purchaser and calculated pursuant to the procedures specified in Section 4.5.

(e) "Annualized Daily Quantity" or "ADQ" means for any Year the sum of
the Daily Contract Quantities divided by the number of days in the Year.

) "Available Discount" means, for each Delivery Month of a Reset Period,
the amount, expressed in cents per MMBtu (rounded down to the nearest one-half cent),
determined by the Calculation Agent pursuant to the Re-Pricing Agreement. The Available
Discount shall equal the sum of the Monthly Discount and any anticipated Annual Refunds for
the applicable Reset Period, and shall be the discount available to Gas Purchaser before
application of the Project Administration Fee. During the Initial Reset Period, the Available
Discount shall be no less than 35 cents per MMBtu.

(2) "Board of Directors" means the Board of Directors of PEFA, Inc.

(h) "Bond Counsel" means counsel of nationally recognized standing in
matters pertaining to the tax-exempt status of interest on obligations issued by states and their
political subdivisions, duly admitted to the practice of law before the highest court of any state or
commonwealth of the United States, and selected by PEFA, Inc..

(1) "Bonds" means PEFA. Inc.’s Gas Supply Revenue Bonds, Series 2018,
issued to finance PEFA, Inc.’s purchase of Gas from J. Aron under the Prepaid Gas Agreement
and costs associated therewith, and any refunding Bonds issued by PEFA, Inc. under the Bond
Indenture.

() "Btu" means one British thermal unit, the amount of heat required to raise

the temperature of one pound of water one degree Fahrenheit at 60 degrees Fahrenheit, and is the

MEI 28229525v.1



DRAFT FORM OF GAS SUPPLY AGREEMENT
OCTOBER 2018

International Btu. The reporting basis for Btu is 14.73 pounds per square inch absolute and 60
degrees Fahrenheit; provided, however, that the definition of Btu as determined by the operator
of the relevant Delivery Point shall be deemed conclusive in accordance with Article VI of the
Prepaid Gas Agreement; and provided further that in the event of an inconsistency in the
definition of "Btu" between this definition and the definition of "Btu" in the Prepaid Gas
Agreement, the definition in the Prepaid Gas Agreement shall apply.

(k) "Business Day" means (i) with respect to payments and general notices
required to be given under this Agreement, any day other than (a) a Saturday or Sunday, (b) a
Federal Reserve Bank holiday, (c¢) any day on which commercial banks located in either New
York, New York, or the State of lowa are required or authorized by law or other governmental
action to close, or (d) any other day excluded pursuant to the Bond Indenture, and (ii) with
respect to Gas deliveries and notices with respect thereto, any day.

D "Calculation Agent" has the meaning specified in the Re-Pricing
Agreement.

(m)  "Central Prevailing Time" or "CPT" means Central Daylight Savings Time
when such time is applicable and otherwise means Central Standard Time.

(n) "Cf" means cubic foot of Gas, defined as the amount of Gas required to
fill a cubic foot of space when the Gas is at an absolute pressure of 14.73 pounds per square inch
absolute and at a temperature of 60 degrees Fahrenheit.

(0) "Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, 26 U.S.C.
§1 et seq. References herein to the Code ort a section of the Code include the U.S. Treasury

Regulations thereunder.

MEI 28229525v.1



DRAFT FORM OF GAS SUPPLY AGREEMENT
OCTOBER 2018

(p) "Commercially Reasonable" or "Commercially Reasonable Efforts"
means, with respect to any decision, purchase, sale or other action required to be made,
attempted or taken by a Party under this Agreement, such decision or efforts as a reasonably
prudent Person would make or undertake, as the case may be, for the protection of its own
interest under the conditions affecting such decision, purchase, sale or other action. For the
avoidance of doubt, the reasonableness of any action taken by a Party under this Agreement shall
be determined at the time of such action, taking into full account the facts, circumstances and
competitive environment surrounding such action.

(q) "Commodity Swap" means (i) the ISDA Master Agreement dated as of

, 2018, together with the Schedule thereto and a related Confirmation, dated
, 2018, each between PEFA, Inc. and the Commodity Swap Counterparty, pursuant to
which agreement PEFA, Inc. is the floating price payer and the Commodity Swap Counterparty
is the fixed price payer with respect to notional quantities of Gas corresponding to quantities of
Gas to be delivered under the Prepaid Gas Agreement and for a term that is equivalent to the
Delivery Period of the Prepaid Gas Agreement, and (ii) each replacement commodity swap
entered into pursuant to the Prepaid Gas Agreement.
(r) "Commodity Swap Counterparty" means PEFA, Inc.’s counterparty under

the Commodity Swap, which initially shall be

(s) "Contract Price" means the price per MMBtu described in Section 4.1.

(t) "Daily Contract Quantity" or "DCQ" means, for each Month, the quantity
of Gas in MMBtu that shall be delivered by PEFA, Inc. to Gas Purchaser and received by Gas
Purchaser from PEFA, Inc. each Gas Day during such Month, as set forth in Exhibit B.

(u) "Delivery Period" is defined in Section 2.1.

MEI 28229525v.1



DRAFT FORM OF GAS SUPPLY AGREEMENT

OCTOBER 2018
v) "Delivery Point" is defined in Section 3.1.
(w)  "Dth" means one dekatherm, which is equivalent to one MMBtu.
(x) "Event of Insolvency" means with respect to any Person the occurrence

and continuance of one or more of the following events: (a) the issuance, under the laws of the
state or other jurisdiction having primary regulatory authority over such Person or any successor
provision thereto (or any other law under which such Person is at the time organized), of an order
for relief, rehabilitation, reorganization, conservation, liquidation or dissolution of such Person
that is not dismissed within 30 days; (b) the commencement by such Person of a voluntary case
or other proceeding seeking an order for relief, liquidation, rehabilitation, conservation,
reorganization or dissolution with respect to itself or its debts under the laws of the state or other
jurisdiction of incorporation or formation of such Person or any bankruptcy, insolvency or other
similar law now or hereafter in effect including, without limitation, the appointment of a trustee,
receiver, liquidator, custodian or other similar official for itself or any substantial part of its
property; (c) the consent of such Person to any relief referred to in the preceding clause (b) in an
involuntary case or other proceeding commenced against it; (d) the appointment of a trustee,
receiver, liquidator, custodian or other similar official for such Person or any substantial part of
its property by a Government Agency or authority having the jurisdiction to do so; (e) the
making by such Person of an assignment for the benefit of creditors; (f) the failure of such
Person generally to pay its debts or claims as they become due; (g) the Person shall admit in
writing its inability to pay its debts when due; (h) the declaration of a moratorium with respect to
the payment of the debts of such Person; or (i) the initiation by such Person of any action to
authorize any of the foregoing.

(y) "Failed Remarketing" has the meaning specified in the Bond Indenture.

MEI 28229525v.1



DRAFT FORM OF GAS SUPPLY AGREEMENT
OCTOBER 2018

() "FERC" means the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission and any
successor thereto.

(aa)  "FERC Gas Tariff" means the interstate pipeline tariff filed by a
Transporter pursuant to FERC regulations and approved by FERC, as amended from time to
time.

(bb)  "Firm" means that performance by a Person may be interrupted without
liability only to the extent that such performance is prevented by reasons of Force Majeure with
respect to such Person asserting Force Majeure.

(cc)  "Force Majeure" is defined in Section 13.2.

(dd) "Gas" means natural gas or any other mixture of hydrocarbon gases, or of
hydrocarbons and liquids or liquefiables, or of hydrocarbons and non-combustible gases,
consisting predominantly of methane.

(ee) "Gas Day" means a period of 24 consecutive hours beginning at 9:00 a.m.
CPT on a calendar day and ending at 9:00 a.m. CPT on the next calendar day. The date of the
Gas Day shall be the date at its beginning. If, through standardization of business practices in
the industry or for any other reason, a Transporter, or the FERC with general applicability,
changes the definition of Gas Day, such change shall apply to the definition of Gas Day in this
Agreement with respect to such Transporter or generally, as applicable.

(ff)  "Gas Purchaser" is defined in the Preamble.

(gg) "Gas Purchaser’s Transporter" means the Transporter receiving Gas on
Gas Purchaser’s behalf at the Delivery Point.

(hh)  "Government Agency" means the United States of America, any state or

commonwealth thereof, any local jurisdiction, any political subdivision of any of the foregoing,

MEI 28229525v.1



DRAFT FORM OF GAS SUPPLY AGREEMENT
OCTOBER 2018

and any other division of government of any of the foregoing, including but not limited to courts,
administrative bodies, departments, commissions, boards, bureaus, agencies, municipalities, or
instrumentalities.

(i1) "Imbalance Charges" means any fees, penalties, costs or other charges (in
cash or in kind) assessed by a Transporter for failure to satisfy the Transporter’s balancing,
scheduling and/or nomination requirements based on such Transporter’s FERC Gas Tariff.

1) "Indenture" means the Trust Indenture dated as of , 2018,

between PEFA, Inc. and [ ], as Trustee, pursuant to which the Bonds are issued

and secured, together with any other trust indenture providing for the issuance of and security
for any refunding Bonds, in each case as the same may be amended from time to time.

(kk)  "Index Price" means the Monthly market index price described in Section
4.2, and any substitute index price determined under Section 4.2.

1) "Initial Rate Period" means the period from and including  , 2019 to
and including ,202 1. INOTE: To be determined at the time of Pricing of the
Bonds.]

(mm) "J. Aron" is defined in the Recitals.

(nn)  "Maturity Date of the Bonds" means the Final Maturity Date of the Bonds,
as defined in the Indenture.

(00) "Mct" means 1,000 Cf of Gas.

(pp) "Minimum Discount" means 35 cents per MMBtu for the Initial Rate
Period, and not less than 24 cents per MMBtu in a Reset Period, and in every case includes the
Monthly Discount plus the projected Annual Refund and is stated before the application of the

Project Administration Fee.

MEI 28229525v.1



DRAFT FORM OF GAS SUPPLY AGREEMENT
OCTOBER 2018

(qq) "MMBtu" means 1,000,000 Btu, which is equivalent to one dekatherm.

(rr)  "Month" means the period beginning at the beginning of the first Gas Day
of a calendar month and ending at the beginning of the first Gas Day of the next calendar month.
The term "Monthly" shall be construed accordingly.

(ss)  "Monthly Discount" means (i) for each Month of the Initial Rate Period,
__cents (30._ ) per MMBtu, and (ii) for each Month of a Reset Period thereafter, the Monthly
Discount portion of the Available Discount for such Reset Period determined by the Calculation
Agent pursuant to the Re-Pricing Agreement.

(tt) "Municipal Utility" means any Person that (i) is a governmental person as
defined in the implementing regulations under Section 141 of the Code and any successor
provision, (ii) owns either or both a Gas distribution utility or an electric distribution utility (or
provides Gas or electricity at wholesale to, or that is sold to entities that provide Gas or
electricity at wholesale to, governmental Persons that own such utilities), and (iii) agrees in
writing to use the Gas purchased by it (or cause such Gas to be used) for a qualifying use as
defined in U.S. Treas. Reg. § 1.148-1(e)(2)(iii).

(uu)  "Person" means any individual, public or private corporation, partnership,
limited liability company, state, county, district, authority, municipality, political subdivision,
instrumentality, partnership, association, firm, trust, estate, or any other entity or organization
whatsoever.

(vv)  "Prepaid Gas Agreement" is defined in the Recitals.

(ww) "Prepaid Project" is defined in the Recitals.

(xx)  "Primary Delivery Point" is defined in Section 3.1.

MEI 28229525v.1



DRAFT FORM OF GAS SUPPLY AGREEMENT
OCTOBER 2018

(yy) "Prime Rate" means, for any day of determination, the fluctuating rate per
annum equal to the "Prime Rate" listed daily in the "Money Rates" section of The Wall Street
Journal on such day (or if such day is not a Business Day, the preceding Business Day), or if The
Wall Street Journal is not published on a particular Business Day, then, the "prime rate"
published in any other national financial journal or newspaper selected by J. Aron in its
reasonable judgment, and if more than one such rate is listed in the applicable publication, the
highest rate shall be used; any change in the Prime Rate shall take effect on the date specified in
the announcement of such change.

(zz)  "Project Administration Fee" means the monthly fee payable by Gas
Purchaser as described in Section 4.3.

(aaa) "Project Agreements" means the agreements entered into by PEFA, Inc.
under the Prepaid Project.

(bbb) "Project Management Committee" means a committee, composed of one
representative appointed by each of the Project Participants, which shall meet in person or by
conference call from time to time and shall monitor performance of the Project and make reports
and recommendations to the Board of Directors as it deems appropriate.

(ccc)  "Project Participants" means Gas Purchaser and those municipal
distribution systems identified in Exhibit C.

(ddd) "Remarketing Election" is defined in Section 5.3(a).

(eee) "Remarketing Election Deadline" means the last date and time by which
the Gas Purchaser may provide a Remarketing Election Notice, which shall be 4:00 p.m. Central

Prevailing Time on the 10th day of the Month (or, if such day is not a Business Day, the next

10

MEI 28229525v.1



DRAFT FORM OF GAS SUPPLY AGREEMENT
OCTOBER 2018

succeeding Business Day) prior to the first Delivery Month of a Reset Period with respect to
which a Remarketing Event has occurred.

(fff)  "Remarketing Election Notice" is defined in Section 5.3(b).

(ggg) "Remarketing Event" is defined in Section 5.3(a).

(hhh) "Re-Pricing Agreement" means the Re-Pricing Agreement, dated as of

, 2018, by and between J. Aron and PEFA, Inc., as amended or supplemented from

time to time in accordance with its terms.

(iii)  "Re-Pricing Date" has the meaning set forth in the Re-Pricing Agreement.

(4jj)  "Reset Period" means each five-year period (or such longer or shorter
period as may be agreed to by PEFA, Inc. and J. Aron pursuant to the Re-Pricing Agreement)
commencing on the last day of the Initial Rate Period or prior Reset Period, as the case may be,
and ending on the fifth anniversary (or such later or earlier anniversary, as the case may be) of
such last day; provided that the final Reset Period shall be the period from the last day of the
prior Reset Period to the end of the Delivery Period.

(kkk) "Transporter" means all Gas gathering or pipeline companies transporting
Gas for PEFA, Inc. or Gas Purchaser upstream or downstream, respectively, of the Delivery
Point.

(111) "Trustee" means the Trustee under the Indenture, which initially shall be

[ ], and its successors as trustee under the Indenture.

(mmm)"Year" means a period of 12 consecutive Months beginning at the
beginning of the first day of each year and ending immediately prior to the beginning of

the first day of in the next calendar year.

11

MEI 28229525v.1



DRAFT FORM OF GAS SUPPLY AGREEMENT
OCTOBER 2018

ARTICLE II

SERVICE OBLIGATIONS

2.1.  Gas Supply Service. PEFA, Inc. acknowledges and agrees that Gas Purchaser has a

need to acquire Gas supplies to provide service to retail Gas consumers within its areas of service on a
long-term basis, and that a significant portion of such Gas supplies must be priced with reference to
deregulated market prices in order to enable Gas Purchaser to ensure that it may provide sales service at
competitive prices. PEFA, Inc. understands that Gas Purchaser has asserted that its long-term viability as
a Municipal Utility providing an essential public service depends in part upon its ability to receive secure
and reliable supplies of Gas on a long-term basis in pre-determined quantities that are priced with
reference to deregulated market prices in the form and structure of the Contract Price, and has determined
that its purchase of Gas under this Agreement will further its objective of providing secure, reliable and
economic Gas supply services to its customers. Gas Purchaser has requested PEFA, Inc. to provide
deliveries of Gas to it consistent with these objectives, and Gas Purchaser understands and acknowledges
that PEFA, Inc. has undertaken the Prepaid Project in order to meet Gas Purchaser’s request, together
with the requests of the other Project Participants, and satisfy Gas Purchaser’s asserted objectives, and
agrees that the Prepaid Project does so. Beginning 2019, and continuing through  , 2049
(the "Delivery Period") [NOTE: Specific Delivery Period to be determined], unless earlier terminated
pursuant to Article V, PEFA, Inc. each Gas Day on a Firm basis shall tender for delivery to Gas Purchaser
at the Delivery Point, and Gas Purchaser each Gas Day on a Firm basis shall purchase and receive from
PEFA,, Inc. at the Delivery Point, the applicable Daily Contract Quantity of Gas set forth for each Month
in Exhibit B. The Parties recognize and agree, however, that, in order to achieve a successful remarketing
of the Bonds following the Initial Rate Period, it may be necessary to reduce the Daily Contract
Quantities in a Reset Period following the Initial Rate Period pursuant to the re-pricing methodology
described in the Re-Pricing Agreement, in which case they shall be so reduced. The Parties agree further

that if, pursuant to the Re-Pricing Agreement, PEFA, Inc. and the Calculation Agent determine in

12

MEI 28229525v.1



DRAFT FORM OF GAS SUPPLY AGREEMENT
OCTOBER 2018

connection with the establishment of any new Reset Period that: (i) such Reset Period will be the final
Reset Period because no unamortized gas value (as described in the Re-Pricing Agreement) will remain
following such Reset Period; and (ii) such Reset Period will end prior to the end of the original Delivery
Period, then (A) PEFA,, Inc. will notify the Gas Purchaser, (B) the Delivery Period will be deemed to be
modified so that it ends at the end of such Reset Period, and (C) the Daily Contract Quantity for the last

Month in such Reset Period may be reduced as provided in the Re-Pricing Agreement.

2.2.  Nature of the Prepaid Project. Gas Purchaser acknowledges and agrees that PEFA,

Inc. will meet its obligations to provide Gas supply service to Gas Purchaser under this Agreement
through its purchase of long-term Gas supplies on a prepaid basis from J. Aron under the Prepaid Gas
Agreement and that PEFA, Inc. is financing its purchase of such long-term supplies through the issuance
of the Bonds on behalf of the Project Participants. Gas Purchaser acknowledges and agrees that PEFA,
Inc. will pledge its right, title, and interest under this Agreement and the revenues to be received under
this Agreement (other than the revenues attributable to the Project Administration Fee described in

Section 4.3) to secure PEFA, Inc.’s obligations under the Indenture.

ARTICLE III

RECEIPT AND DELIVERY POINTS

3.1.  Delivery Point. All Gas delivered under this Agreement shall be delivered and received
at the points of delivery specified in Exhibit A (the "Primary Delivery Point") or to any other point of
delivery (an "Alternate Delivery Point") that has been mutually agreed to in writing by PEFA, Inc. and
Gas Purchaser (each Primary Delivery Point or Alternate Delivery Point, if specified, being a "Delivery

Point").

3.2.  Transfer of Title. Gas Purchaser shall take title to all Gas delivered to it by PEFA, Inc.

at the Delivery Point and shall own such Gas and shall assume all risk of loss following its transfer at the

Delivery Point.

13

MEI 28229525v.1



DRAFT FORM OF GAS SUPPLY AGREEMENT
OCTOBER 2018

ARTICLE IV

PRICING OF GAS SUPPLY SERVICES

4.1. Charge Per MMBtu Delivered. For each MMBtu of Gas delivered by PEFA, Inc. to

Gas Purchaser at the Delivery Point, Gas Purchaser shall pay PEFA, Inc. the Contract Price for such Gas,
which shall be the applicable Index Price, as defined in Section 4.2, less the Monthly Discount. Gas
Purchaser shall not be charged for any Gas that is not tendered for delivery by PEFA, Inc..
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Parties recognize and agree that the pricing specified in Section 5.2
shall apply to any Gas deliveries made by PEFA, Inc. following a Failed Remarketing under the Prepaid

Gas Agreement.

4.2.  Index Price. The Index Price for any Month shall mean the price per MMBtu, stated in
U.S. dollars, as published in the first issue for the Month (including corrections thereto in later issues) in
which the event occurred that required calculation of the Index Price, of Inside FERC’s Gas Market
Report, a publication of S&P Global Platts, a division of S&P Global, in the section "Monthly Bidweek

Spot Gas Prices — Platts Locations ($/MMBtu)", under the heading " " (or any

successor heading) for " ", under the column "Index". If Inside FERC’s Gas

Market Report should cease to publish such first-of-the-month index prices or should cease to be
published entirely, the Index Price shall be the price per MMBtu, stated in U.S. dollars, for Gas to be
delivered at the Delivery Point during the applicable Month as set forth in an alternative index as
determined under Section 18.11 of the Prepaid Gas Agreement. PEFA, Inc. shall provide Gas Purchaser
the opportunity to offer its recommendations and other input to PEFA, Inc. for PEFA, Inc.’s use in the

process under Section 18.11 of the Prepaid Gas Agreement.

4.3.  Project Administration Fee. PEFA, Inc. shall bill and Gas Purchaser shall pay each

Month, as part of the Monthly invoice described in Article XI, the Project Administration Fee. The
Project Administration Fee shall equal the product of (i) the Daily Contract Quantity for the Month of Gas

deliveries, (ii) the number of days in such Month, and (iii) an administration charge of (a) $0.0 /MMBtu

14

MEI 28229525v.1



DRAFT FORM OF GAS SUPPLY AGREEMENT
OCTOBER 2018

during the Initial Rate Period and each Reset Period in which the Available Discount (the Monthly
Discount plus the projected Annual Refund per MMBtu) is below __ cents per MMBtu, (b) $0.0 /MMBtu
during any Reset Period in which the Available Discount (monthly and annual) is between __ cents per
MMBtu and __ cents per MMBtu, and (c¢) $0.0 /MMBtu in any Reset Period in which the Available

Discount (monthly and annual) is greater than __ cents per MMBtu.

AVAILABLE ADMINISTRATION
DISCOUNT CHARGE
($/MMBTU) (SMMBTU)

$0.50 or above $0.0

$0.40 to $0.49 $0.0_

Below $0.40 $0.0

4.4.  Assistance with Sales to Third Parties. In the event Gas Purchaser does not require all
or any portion of the DCQ for any Gas Day that it is obligated to purchase under this Agreement as a
result of a loss of load on its system, Gas Purchaser shall remain obligated to take title to the its full DCQ
for the Gas Day PEFA, Inc. shall, upon reasonable notice from Gas Purchaser, use Commercially
Reasonable Efforts, to the extent permitted in the Prepaid Gas Agreement, to have J. Aron: (x) retake title
to the unneeded portion of Gas Purchaser’s DCQ for a Gas Day; and (y) arrange for the sale of such
quantities by J. Aron (i) to another Project Participant, (ii) to another Municipal Utility, or (iii) if
necessary, to another purchaser. If PEFA, Inc. succeeds in having J. Aron retake title to the gas and
arranging such a sale or sales or J. Aron otherwise makes such a sale or sales, PEFA, Inc. shall credit
against the amount owed by Gas Purchaser for such Gas the amount received by PEFA, Inc. from J. Aron
for such sales less all directly incurred costs or expenses, including but not limited to remarketing
administrative charges paid to PEFA, Inc. under the Prepaid Gas Agreement, but in no event shall the
amount of such credit be more than the Contract Price, minus, in all cases, the Project Administration Fee
and a PEFA, Inc. remarketing administrative charge of five cents ($0.05) per MMBtu, times the

applicable quantities. Notwithstanding the foregoing sentence, in the event Gas Purchaser has suffered a

15

MEI 28229525v.1



DRAFT FORM OF GAS SUPPLY AGREEMENT
OCTOBER 2018

permanent loss of demand on its system as described in Section 6.2, PEFA, Inc. shall not assess the
remarketing administrative charge of five cents per MMBtu.

4.5.  Annual Refunds. In addition to the Discount applicable to deliveries of the Daily

Contract Quantity to Gas Purchaser under this Agreement, PEFA, Inc. shall provide such Annual Refund
to Gas Purchaser out of the funds as may be made available for distribution by PEFA, Inc. pursuant to
Section 5.10(b) of the Indenture. Such Annual Refund, if any, shall be paid by PEFA, Inc. to Gas
Purchaser and the other Project Participants as soon as practicable following the release of funds for such
purpose to PEFA, Inc. under the terms of the Indenture. In determining the amount of such Annual
Refund, if any, to be paid to PEFA, Inc. may reserve such funds as may be required under the terms of the
Indenture or as it deems reasonably necessary and appropriate, including but not limited to amounts
required to fund or maintain the Minimum Discount for any future Reset Period, to fund or maintain any
rate stabilization or working capital reserve, and/or to reserve or account for unfunded liabilities and
expenses, including future sinking fund or other principal amortization of the Bonds, or for other costs of
the Prepaid Project. All such refunds, if any, shall be made to Gas Purchaser in an amount reflecting the
allocation of such refunds that the Project Management Committee recommends and the Board of
Directors determines by calculating the ADQ of Gas Purchaser for the previous Year and dividing Gas
Purchaser's ADQ by the aggregate total ADQ for such Year of all of the Project Participants. A list of all
such Project Participants and their initial Annualized Daily Quantities is set forth in Exhibit C. On the
date of this Agreement, the projected Annual Refund for the Initial Rate Period is __ cents ($0. ) per

MMBtu of Gas Purchaser’s ADQ.

ARTICLE V

TERM
5.1.  Primary Term. This Agreement shall be effective as of the date first set forth above (the

"Effective Date") and shall be implemented as appropriate to effectuate purchases and sales of Gas under

this Agreement for deliveries commencing on the first day of the Delivery Period. Unless earlier

16

MEI 28229525v.1



DRAFT FORM OF GAS SUPPLY AGREEMENT
OCTOBER 2018

terminated in accordance with Section 5.2, this Agreement thereafter shall remain in full force and effect
for a primary term ending on the Maturity Date of the Bonds, subject to all winding up arrangements as

described in Section 5.4.

Early Termination Before End of Primary Term. Notwithstanding Section 5.1, Gas

Purchaser acknowledges and agrees that (i) in the event the Prepaid Gas Agreement terminates prior to
the end of the primary term of this Agreement, this Agreement shall terminate on the date of early
termination of the Prepaid Gas Agreement (subject to all winding up arrangements) and (ii) PEFA, Inc.’s
obligation to deliver Gas under this Agreement shall terminate upon the termination of deliveries of Gas
to PEFA, Inc. under the Prepaid Gas Agreement. In addition, Gas Purchaser acknowledges and agrees
that this Agreement may terminate early as a result of a default by Gas Purchaser under Article XIV.
PEFA, Inc. shall provide notice to Gas Purchaser of any early termination date. Moreover, the Parties
recognize and agree that, in the event that the Prepaid Gas Agreement terminates because of a Failed
Remarketing of the Bonds that occurs in the first Month of a Reset Period, PEFA, Inc. shall deliver Gas
under this Agreement for the remainder of such first Month, and, notwithstanding anything in this
Agreement to the contrary, the Contract Price for all Gas deliveries made by PEFA, Inc. during such first
Month shall be the applicable Index Price identified for deliveries in Section 4.2 with no Monthly

Discount and there shall be no Annual Refunds associated with such deliveries.

5.3. Remarketing Election; Suspension and Resumption of Deliveries. (a)

Remarketing Event. For each Reset Period, PEFA, Inc. shall provide to Gas Purchaser, at least

ten (10) days prior to the applicable Remarketing Election Deadline (without regard to any extension
thereof as provided for in subsection (b) of this Section 5.3), formal written notice setting forth the
duration of such Reset Period and the estimated Available Discount for such Reset Period. In the event
the estimated Available Discount for a Reset Period is not at least equal to the Minimum Discount for that
Reset Period (a "Remarketing Event"), such notice shall also state (i) that a Remarketing Event has

occurred, (ii) the applicable Remarketing Election Deadline, and (iii) that Gas Purchaser, and each other

17

MEI 28229525v.1



DRAFT FORM OF GAS SUPPLY AGREEMENT
OCTOBER 2018

Project Participant, may (A) continue to purchase and receive its Daily Contract Quantity for each Gas
Day of each Delivery Month during such Reset Period at a Contract Price that reflects the Monthly
Discount portion of the Available Discount (as finally determined as hereinafter described), plus Annual
Refunds, if any, as described in Section 4.5, or (B) elect that such Daily Contract Quantity be remarketed
for such Reset Period (a "Remarketing Election") by providing a Remarketing Election Notice prior to the
Remarketing Election Deadline. The Parties acknowledge that the determination of the Available
Discount for a Reset Period under the Re-Pricing Agreement will be through an iterative, on-going
process and that PEFA, Inc. may provide preliminary communications concerning the estimated
Available Discount for a Reset Period. The Parties acknowledge further that if such preliminary
communications indicate that the then-current market conditions do not support a discount at least equal
to the Minimum Discount, such preliminary communications shall not give rise to a right for Gas
Purchaser to provide a Remarketing Election Notice.

(b) Remarketing Election. If Gas Purchaser elects to have its Daily Contract

Quantity remarketed for such Reset Period following the occurrence of a Remarketing Event, Gas
Purchaser shall provide written notice of such Remarketing Election to PEFA, Inc., J. Aron and the
Trustee (its "Remarketing Election Notice") not later than the applicable Remarketing Election Deadline.
A Remarketing Election Notice shall be in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit G. In the
event Gas Purchaser provides a Remarketing Election Notice on or prior to the applicable Remarketing
Election Deadline, the Parties’ obligations to deliver and receive Gas shall be suspended for the duration
of such Reset Period and the Daily Contract Quantity for such Reset Period shall be zero MMBtu per day.

(©) Extension of Remarketing Election Deadline. If a Remarketing Event has

occurred and Gas Purchaser has not made a Remarketing Election, but one or more of the Project
Participants has made a remarketing election the estimated Available Discount may be required to be
recalculated pursuant to the Re-Pricing Agreement. In such case PEFA, Inc. shall provide such new
estimated Available Discount to Gas Purchaser promptly in writing and the Remarketing Election

Deadline shall be extended to the third Business Day following the date of such notice.
18

MEI 28229525v.1



DRAFT FORM OF GAS SUPPLY AGREEMENT
OCTOBER 2018

(d) Final Determination of Available Discount. The Parties acknowledge and agree

that the final Available Discount for any Reset Period following the Initial Rate Period will be determined
on the applicable Re-Pricing Date, and that such Available Discount may differ from the estimate or
estimates of such Available Discount provided to Gas Purchaser prior to the applicable Remarketing
Election Deadline. Accordingly, the Parties agree that:
(1) the Available Discount for any Reset Period will not be less than the
Minimum Discount applicable to such Reset Period, unless (A) PEFA, Inc. has provided notice of
such Remarketing Event to Gas Purchaser in accordance with subsection (a) of this Section 5.3,
and (B) Gas Purchaser has not provided a Remarketing Election Notice prior to the applicable
Remarketing Election Deadline (as the same may be extended pursuant to subsection (c) of this
Section 5.3); and
(i1) if Gas Purchaser has not made a Remarketing Election prior to the
applicable Remarketing Election Deadline (as the same may be extended pursuant to subsection
(c) of this Section 5.3), Gas Purchaser shall be deemed to have elected to continue to purchase
and receive its Daily Contract Quantity at a Contract Price that reflects the Monthly Discount
portion of the Available Discount as finally determined on the applicable Re-Pricing Date, plus
the right to its share of Annual Refunds, if any, and all delivery and purchase obligations under
this Agreement shall continue in full force and effect for the applicable Reset Period.

(e) Resumption of Deliveries. In the event that Gas deliveries are suspended following a

Remarketing Election made by Gas Purchaser in accordance with this Section 5.3, the Parties
acknowledge and agree that deliveries shall resume if, in any future Reset Period, (i) the Available
Discount calculated for such Reset Period is equal to or exceeds the Minimum Discount; or (ii) PEFA,
Inc. and Gas Purchaser mutually agree to resume deliveries for such future Reset Period with a discount
less than the applicable Minimum Discount. PEFA, Inc. shall provide notice setting forth the duration of
the Reset Period and the estimated Available Discount for such Reset Period no later than at least ten (10)

days prior to the applicable Remarketing Election Deadline for such Reset Period. The Parties
19

MEI 28229525v.1



DRAFT FORM OF GAS SUPPLY AGREEMENT
OCTOBER 2018

acknowledge and agree that the final Available Discount will be determined on the applicable Re-Pricing
Date, and that such Available Discount may differ from the estimate or estimates of such Available

Discount with the effect described in subsection (d) above.

5.4. Winding Up Arrangements.The termination of this Agreement shall not relieve either
Party of any obligation to pay amounts due under this Agreement for periods prior to the termination date,
including all interest, costs and indemnity obligations, or to effectuate all winding up arrangements, or to
take any other actions as may be necessary to effectuate all of the terms of this Agreement. For the
avoidance of doubt, Gas Purchaser shall not be responsible for the payment of more than the Contract

Price for Gas deliveries as a result of any winding up arrangements.

FAILURE TO PERFORM

6.1.  Cost of Replacement Gas. Except in cases of Force Majeure, for each MMBtu that

PEFA, Inc. is obligated to deliver to Gas Purchaser under this Agreement but fails to deliver, PEFA, Inc.
shall pay to Gas Purchaser an amount equal to the difference between the price per MMBtu which would
have been applicable to the undelivered Gas under Article IV and any higher cost per MMBtu which Gas
Purchaser actually incurred to obtain an equivalent quantity of replacement Gas, including but not limited
to any incremental charges associated with the transportation and storage of such replacement Gas,
exercising Commercially Reasonable Efforts to obtain such replacement Gas and alternate transportation
at a Commercially Reasonable price. For purposes of this Section 6.1, replacement Gas includes without
limitation Gas withdrawn from storage, liquefied natural gas, and peak shaving, and costs associated with
obtaining such Gas include without limitation storage withdrawal and injection costs, storage fuel, and
liquefaction and vaporization costs for stored liquefied natural gas; provided, however, that for purposes
of the foregoing the price of any such replacement Gas withdrawn from storage shall be the market price

applicable to such Gas at the time of the withdrawal.

6.2.  Obligation to Take the Daily Quantity. Subject to the operation of Section 4.4

governing load loss, if on any Gas Day PEFA, Inc. tenders the Daily Contract Quantity for delivery to

20

MEI 28229525v.1



DRAFT FORM OF GAS SUPPLY AGREEMENT
OCTOBER 2018

Gas Purchaser and Gas Purchaser fails to take the Daily Contract Quantity, Gas Purchaser shall remain
obligated to pay PEFA, Inc. the Contract Price for the Daily Contract Quantity plus the Project
Administration Fee. PEFA, Inc. shall credit to Gas Purchaser’s account any net revenues PEFA, Inc. may
receive from J. Aron under the Prepaid Gas Agreement in connection with the ultimate sale of any such
Gas by J. Aron to other Municipal Utilities, up to the Contract Price, less the Project Administration Fee,
less PEFA, Inc.’s remarketing administrative charge of five cents ($0.05) per MMBtu. In the event of
permanent load loss on Gas Purchaser’s system due to the permanent cessation of all of part of the
operations of a large industrial sales customer, Gas Purchaser may request the permanent reduction of its
Daily Contract Quantity for the remaining term of this Agreement. If PEFA, Inc. is satisfied that such
loss of demand is permanent, through evidence satisfactory to PEFA, Inc., in its sole discretion, PEFA,
Inc. shall pursue the re-allocation of Gas Purchaser’s Daily Contract Quantity associated with its loss of
demand to other Project Participants or through remarketing under the provisions of the Prepaid Gas
Agreement, and upon such re-allocation or remarketing, shall reduce Gas Purchaser’s Daily Contract

Quantity through the remaining term of this Agreement accordingly.

6.3. No Consequential or Special Damages. Neither Party shall be liable for

consequential, incidental, special, or punitive damages or losses which may be suffered by the other as a

result of the failure to deliver or take or pay for the required quantities of Gas under this Agreement.

6.4. Imbalances. The Parties shall use Commercially Reasonable Efforts to avoid the
imposition of any Imbalance Charges. If PEFA, Inc. or Gas Purchaser receives an invoice from a
Transporter that includes Imbalance Charges related to the obligations of either Party under this
Agreement, the Parties shall determine the validity as well as the cause of such Imbalance Charges. If the
Imbalance Charges were incurred as a result of Gas Purchaser’s takes of quantities of Gas greater than or
less than the Daily Contract Quantity at any Delivery Point, then Gas Purchaser shall pay for such
Imbalance Charges or reimburse PEFA, Inc. for such Imbalance Charges paid by PEFA, Inc. If the

Imbalance Charges were incurred as a result of PEFA, Inc.’s deliveries of quantities of Gas greater than

21

MEI 28229525v.1



DRAFT FORM OF GAS SUPPLY AGREEMENT
OCTOBER 2018

or less than the Daily Contract Quantities at any Delivery Point, then PEFA, Inc. shall pay for such
Imbalance Charges or reimburse Gas Purchaser for such Imbalance Charges paid by Gas Purchaser.
Notwithstanding the provisions of Sections 6.1 and 6.2, the Parties may mutually agree to make up any
differences between the Daily Contract Quantity and the quantity delivered or taken on any Gas Day in

kind.

ARTICLE VII

RESPONSIBILITY FOR TRANSPORTATION

PEFA, Inc. shall make all arrangements for transportation services required to effect the delivery of the
Daily Contract Quantity to the Delivery Point. Gas Purchaser shall take all actions and be responsible for
making all arrangements required to effect the transportation of the Daily Contract Quantity from the
Delivery Point, including but not limited to all nominations, scheduling, balancing, and associated
management and administrative functions. PEFA, Inc. shall bear all costs and expenses of transportation
prior to the delivery of the Daily Contract Quantity at the Delivery Point, except as provided in this

Agreement. Gas Purchaser shall bear all costs of transportation from the Delivery Point.

ARTICLE VIII

DELIVERY REQUIREMENTS

8.1.  Specifications. All Gas delivered under this Agreement shall be merchantable and shall,

upon delivery, conform to the quality specifications and heating value specified in Gas Purchaser’s

Transporter’s FERC Gas Tariff.

8.2.  Pressure. All Gas sold by PEFA, Inc. to Gas Purchaser under this Agreement shall be
delivered to Gas Purchaser at the pressure maintained from time to time in Gas Purchaser’s Transporter’s

facilities at the Delivery Point.

8.3. Measurement. Gas sold under this Agreement shall be measured through Gas

Purchaser’s Transporter’s existing measurement facilities at the Delivery Point in accordance with the

22

MEI 28229525v.1



DRAFT FORM OF GAS SUPPLY AGREEMENT
OCTOBER 2018

provisions of such Transporter’s FERC Gas Tariff. The unit of volume for measurement of Gas delivered
under this Agreement shall be one Mcf or otherwise as consistent with Transporter’s measurement at the
Delivery Point. The sales unit of the Gas shall be one MMBtu, established by converting Mcfs measured
at the Delivery Point to MMBtus according to the Btu content determined by Transporter on a dry basis at
the Delivery Point under Transporter’s FERC Gas Tariff. With respect to any measurement of Gas
delivered or received under this Agreement at any Delivery Point, the measurement of such Gas
(including the definition of Btu used in making such measurement) by the operator of such Delivery Point

shall be conclusive.

ARTICLE IX

TITLE AND RISK OF LOSS

PEFA, Inc. warrants the title to all Gas sold to Gas Purchaser under this Agreement. Transfer of
custody and title to Gas sold under this Agreement shall pass to and vest in Gas Purchaser at the Delivery
Point. As between the Parties, PEFA, Inc. shall be deemed to be in exclusive control and possession of
Gas delivered under this Agreement prior to the time of delivery to Gas Purchaser at the Delivery Point,
and Gas Purchaser shall be deemed to be in exclusive control and possession of Gas delivered under this
Agreement from the Delivery Point.

ARTICLE X

ROYALTIES AND TAXES

10.1. Royalties and Other Charges. PEFA, Inc. shall pay or cause to be paid any royalties or

other sums due on the gathering, handling, and transportation of Gas sold under this Agreement prior to

its delivery to Gas Purchaser at the Delivery Point.

10.2. Taxes. The price for Gas sold to Gas Purchaser under this Agreement is inclusive of all
production, severance, ad valorem, or similar taxes levied on the production or transportation of the Gas
prior to its delivery to Gas Purchaser at the Delivery Point, and all such taxes shall be borne and paid

exclusively by PEFA, Inc.; provided, however, that if Gas Purchaser is required to remit such taxes to the

23

MEI 28229525v.1



DRAFT FORM OF GAS SUPPLY AGREEMENT
OCTOBER 2018

collecting authority, Gas Purchaser shall do so and PEFA, Inc. shall credit an amount equal to the taxes so
paid against payments otherwise due to PEFA, Inc. under this Agreement. The price for Gas sold to Gas
Purchaser under this Agreement does not include any federal, tribal, state, or local sales, use,
consumption, utility, storage, greenhouse gas, carbon, license, ad valorem, franchise, or similar taxes
imposed by any taxing authority on the sale to, or use by, Gas Purchaser of Gas sold under this
Agreement, including without limitation ad valorem taxes on Gas held in storage by Gas Purchaser. Gas
Purchaser shall be responsible for the payment of any such taxes and for completing and filing all

required forms.

ARTICLE XI

BILLING AND PAYMENT

11.1. Timing. Not later than ten days following the end of the Month of delivery, PEFA, Inc.
shall provide a Monthly billing statement to Gas Purchaser of the amount due for Gas tendered for
delivery under this Agreement. Such billing statement shall be provided to Gas Purchaser by hand
delivery, first-class mail, express courier, electronic transmission, or facsimile transmission to the address
or facsimile number set forth for Gas Purchaser in Article XVII. The due date for payment by Gas
Purchaser to PEFA, Inc. shall be the 23rd day of the Month following the Month of delivery. Such due
date shall be applicable without regard to the date or source of a billing statement to Gas Purchaser. If the
23rd day is not a Business Day, payment is due on the immediately preceding Business Day. Gas

Purchaser shall make payment by wire transfer to the address set forth for PEFA, Inc. in Article XVIIIL.

11.2. Late Payment. In the event Gas Purchaser fails to pay an amount when due hereunder,
interest thereon shall accrue at a rate of interest per annum equal to the lesser of (i) the Prime Rate plus
two percent or (ii) the maximum rate permitted by law, in either case from the due date until paid. If Gas
Purchaser disputes the appropriateness of any charge or calculation in any billing statement, Gas
Purchaser, within the time provided for payment, shall notify PEFA, Inc. of the existence of and basis for

such dispute and shall pay all amounts billed by PEFA, Inc., including any amounts in dispute. Ifit is

24

MEI 28229525v.1



DRAFT FORM OF GAS SUPPLY AGREEMENT
OCTOBER 2018

ultimately determined that Gas Purchaser did not owe the disputed amount, by agreement or by a final
order of a court of competent jurisdiction which is not subject to appeal or concerning which any right to
appeal has been waived or which the Parties have irrevocably agreed not to appeal, PEFA, Inc. shall pay

Gas Purchaser that amount plus interest as calculated in accordance with this Section 11.2.

11.3. Audit Rights. Each Party shall have the right, including on PEFA, Inc.’s part pursuant
to a request by J. Aron under the Prepaid Gas Agreement, at its own expense, to examine and audit at any
reasonable time the books, records, measurement data, charts, and telemetry data of the other Party to the
extent, but only to the extent, necessary to verify the accuracy of any statements or charges made under or
pursuant to this Agreement. Any inaccuracy shall be corrected promptly when discovered; provided,
however, that neither Party shall be required to maintain books, records, measurement data, charts, or
telemetry data for a period of more than two calendar years following the end of the calendar year to
which they are applicable. Neither Party shall have a right to question or contest any charge or credit if
the matter is not called to the attention of the other Party in writing within 24 Months of the date of the

charge or credit in question.

11.4. Operating Expense of Gas Purchaser. Gas Purchaser's obligation to make the

payments it is required to make under this Agreement is a several obligation and not a joint obligation
with the obligations of any other Project Participant under its contract with PEFA, Inc. for the purchase of
Gas under the Project. Gas Purchaser agrees to make such payments from the revenues of its Gas system,
and as a charge against such revenues, as an operating expense of its Gas system and a cost of purchased
Gas; provided, however, that Gas Purchaser, in its discretion, may apply any legally available monies to
the payment of amounts due under this Agreement. Gas Purchaser hereby covenants and agrees that it
will establish, maintain, and collect rates and charges for the Gas services furnished by its Gas system so
as to provide revenues sufficient, together with other available Gas system revenues, to enable Gas
Purchaser to pay to PEFA, Inc. all amounts payable under this Agreement and to pay all other amounts

payable from the revenues of Gas Purchaser's Gas system, and to maintain any required reserves. Gas

25

MEI 28229525v.1



DRAFT FORM OF GAS SUPPLY AGREEMENT
OCTOBER 2018

Purchaser further covenants and agrees that it shall not furnish or supply Gas services free of charge to
any person, firm, corporation, association, or other entity, public or private, except any such service free
of charge that Gas Purchaser is supplying on the date of this Agreement, as has been specifically
identified by Gas Purchaser to PEFA, Inc. in writing, and that it shall promptly enforce the payment of
any and all material accounts owing to Gas Purchaser for the sale of Gas or the provision of transportation
or other services to its customers. Gas Purchaser further covenants and agrees that in any future bond
issue undertaken by Gas Purchaser, or in connection with any other financing or financial transaction, Gas
Purchaser shall provide that the amounts payable by it under this Agreement constitute a cost of
purchased Gas and an operating expense of its Gas system payable, together with all other operating
expenses, from a first charge on the revenues of its Gas system and shall not pledge or encumber the
revenues of its Gas system through a gross revenue pledge or in any other way which creates a prior or
superior obligation to its obligation to make payments under this Agreement. Gas Purchaser further

covenants that it shall not take an action to institute an Event of Insolvency with respect to Gas Purchaser.

11.5. Financial Responsibility. When reasonable grounds for insecurity of payments due

under this Agreement arise, PEFA, Inc. may demand, and Gas Purchaser shall provide within five
Business Days if demanded, adequate assurance of performance. Reasonable grounds include but are not
limited to the occurrence of an Event of Insolvency with respect to Gas Purchaser or the downgrading of
Gas Purchaser’s credit rating, if any, by Moody’s Investors Service or Fitch Ratings to a level below
investment grade, and/or such facts and circumstances which would constitute reasonable grounds for
insecurity under lowa Code Section 554.13401. Adequate assurance shall mean sufficient security in the
form and for a term reasonably specified by PEFA, Inc., including but not limited to a standby irrevocable
letter of credit, a prepayment, a deposit to an escrow account, or a performance bond or guaranty by a
creditworthy entity. The Parties agree that in the event Gas Purchaser fails to provide such adequate
assurance as demanded, PEFA, Inc. shall have the right to suspend further deliveries of Gas to Gas

Purchaser under this Agreement on three days written notice and shall not be obligated to restore such

26

MEI 28229525v.1



DRAFT FORM OF GAS SUPPLY AGREEMENT
OCTOBER 2018

deliveries until the first day of the Month after such demand has been satisfied; provided, however, that
PEFA, Inc. shall not be obligated to restore such deliveries notwithstanding the satisfaction of such
demand until the completion of the term of deliveries to any replacement sales customer to which J. Aron

has remarketed the Gas on behalf of PEFA, Inc.

11.6. No Set-Off. Payment for all amounts set forth in a billing statement provided to Gas

Purchaser pursuant to Section 11.1 shall be made without set-off or counterclaim of any kind.

ARTICLE XII

LAWS AND REGULATIONS

This Agreement is subject to all valid laws, orders, rules, regulations, or other
governmental actions of any duly constituted federal, state, or local governmental authority, to
the extent such laws, orders, rules, and regulations are applicable and effective from time to time;
provided, however, that no such action by Gas Purchaser’s or PEFA Inc.’s governing body may
affect that Party’s obligations and rights under this Agreement.

ARTICLE XIII

FORCE MAJEURE

13.1. Suspension of Obligations. Except with regard to a Party’s obligation to make

payments under this Agreement, neither Party shall be liable to the other for failure to perform an

obligation to the extent such failure was caused by Force Majeure, as defined in Section 13.2.

13.2. Force Majeure Defined. The term "Force Majeure" as employed herein means any

cause not reasonably within the control of the Party claiming suspension, as further defined in this Section
13.2. The term "Force Majeure" shall include, but not be limited to, the following: (i) physical events
such as acts of God, landslides, lightning, earthquakes, fires, storms or storm warnings, such as hurricanes
or tornadoes, which result in evacuation of the affected area, floods, washouts, explosions, or breakage of
or accident or necessity of repairs to machinery or equipment or lines of pipe; (ii) weather related events

27

MEI 28229525v.1



DRAFT FORM OF GAS SUPPLY AGREEMENT
OCTOBER 2018

affecting an entire geographic region, such as low temperatures which cause freezing or failure of wells or
lines of pipe; (iii) interruption and/or curtailment of transportation and/or storage by Transporters
(provided that if the affected Party is using interruptible or secondary Firm transportation, only if primary,
in-path, Firm transportation is also curtailed by the same event, or, if the relevant Transporter does not
curtail based on path, if primary Firm transportation is also curtailed); (iv) acts of others such as strikes,
lockouts or other industrial disturbances, riots, sabotage, insurrections, wars or acts of terror; (v)
governmental actions, such as necessity for compliance with any court order, law, statute, ordinance,
regulation, or policy having the effect of law promulgated by a Government Agency having jurisdiction;
and (vi) any invocation of Force Majeure by J. Aron under the Prepaid Gas Agreement. PEFA, Inc. and
Gas Purchaser shall make Commercially Reasonable Efforts to avoid the adverse impacts of a Force
Majeure event or occurrence and to resolve the event or occurrence once it has occurred in order to

resume performance.

13.3. Force Majeure Exclusions. Neither Party shall be entitled to the benefits of a claim of

Force Majeure to the extent performance is affected by any or all of the following circumstances: (i) the
Party claiming excuse failed to remedy the condition and to resume the performance of its obligations
with reasonable dispatch; (ii) economic hardship, to include, without limitation, PEFA, Inc.’s ability to
sell Gas at a higher or more advantageous price, Gas Purchaser’s ability to purchase Gas at a lower or
more advantageous price, or a Government Agency disallowing, in whole or in part, the pass-through of
costs resulting from this Agreement; or (iii) the loss of Gas Purchaser’s markets or Gas Purchaser’s
inability to resell Gas purchased under this Agreement, except, in either case, as provided in Section 13.2.
Gas Purchaser shall not be entitled to the benefit of the provisions of Force Majeure to the extent
performance is adversely affected by any action taken by Gas Purchaser in its governmental capacity.

The Party claiming Force Majeure shall not be excused from its responsibility for Imbalance Charges.

28

MEI 28229525v.1



DRAFT FORM OF GAS SUPPLY AGREEMENT
OCTOBER 2018

13.4. Settlement of Labor Disputes. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this

Agreement, the Parties agree that the settlement of strikes, lockouts or other industrial disturbances shall

be within the sole discretion of the Party experiencing such disturbance.

13.5. Force Majeure Procedure. The Party whose performance is prevented by Force

Majeure must provide notice to the other Party as soon as practicable. Initial notice may be given orally;
however, written notice with reasonably full particulars of the event or occurrence is required as soon as
reasonably possible. Upon providing written notice of Force Majeure to the other Party, the affected
Party will be relieved of its obligation, from the onset of Force Majeure, to make or accept delivery of
Gas, as applicable, to the extent and for the duration of Force Majeure, and neither Party shall be deemed

to have failed in such obligations to the other during such occurrence or event.

ARTICLE XIV

DEFAULT

14.1. Failure by Gas Purchaser to Make Payments Due. Failure by Gas Purchaser to make

to PEFA, Inc. when due any of the payments for which provision is made in this Agreement shall

constitute a default on the part of Gas Purchaser.

14.2. Enforcement and Right to Discontinue Service. In the event of any default under

Section 14.1, PEFA, Inc. shall have the right to recover from Gas Purchaser any amount in default. In
enforcement of any such right of recovery, PEFA, Inc. may bring any suit, action, or proceeding at law or
in equity, including without limitation mandamus, injunction and action for specific performance, as may
be available to PEFA, Inc. to enforce any covenant, agreement, or obligation to make any payment for
which provision is made in this Agreement, and PEFA, Inc. in its sole discretion may, upon three days
written notice to Gas Purchaser, cease and discontinue providing delivery of all or any portion of the Gas
otherwise to be delivered to Gas Purchaser at the Delivery Point under this Agreement. In the event

PEFA, Inc. takes all or any of the actions authorized by this Section 14.2, Gas Purchaser shall remain

29

MEI 28229525v.1



DRAFT FORM OF GAS SUPPLY AGREEMENT
OCTOBER 2018

fully liable for payment of all amounts in default and shall not be relieved of any of its payment

obligations under this Agreement.

14.3. Reinstatement of Service. If PEFA, Inc. exercises its right to discontinue providing

Gas deliveries to Gas Purchaser under Section 14.2, such Gas deliveries may only be reinstated, at a time
to be determined by PEFA, Inc., upon (i) payment in full by Gas Purchaser of all amounts then due and
payable under this Agreement and (ii) payment in advance by Gas Purchaser at the beginning of each
Month of amounts estimated by PEFA, Inc. to be due to PEFA, Inc. for the future delivery of Gas under
this Agreement for such Month. PEFA, Inc. may continue to require payment in advance after the
reinstatement of service under this Agreement for such period of time as PEFA, Inc. in its sole discretion

may determine is appropriate.

14.4. Other Default by Gas Purchaser. In the event of a failure by Gas Purchaser to

establish, maintain, or collect rates or charges adequate to provide revenues sufficient to enable Gas
Purchaser to pay all amounts due to PEFA, Inc. under this Agreement, or in the event of a failure by Gas
Purchaser to take from PEFA, Inc. its Gas supplies in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement,
or in the event of any default by Gas Purchaser under any other covenant, agreement, or obligation in this
Agreement, PEFA, Inc. (without limiting the provisions of Section 14.6) may bring any suit, action, or
proceeding at law or in equity, including without limitation mandamus, injunction, and action for specific
performance, as may be available to PEFA, Inc. enforce any covenant, agreement, or obligation of Gas
Purchaser in this Agreement. In addition to the foregoing remedies (and without limiting any other
provisions of this Agreement), if Gas Purchaser fails to accept from PEFA, Inc. any of the Daily Contract
Quantity tendered for delivery under this Agreement, PEFA, Inc. shall have the right to sell such Gas to

third parties.

14.5. Default by PEFA, Inc.. In the event of a default by PEFA, Inc. under any covenant,

agreement, or obligation in this Agreement, Gas Purchaser (without limiting the provisions of Section

14.6) may bring any suit, action, or proceeding at law or in equity, including without limitation
30

MEI 28229525v.1



DRAFT FORM OF GAS SUPPLY AGREEMENT
OCTOBER 2018

mandamus, injunction, and action for specific performance, as may be available to Gas Purchaser to

enforce any covenant, agreement, or obligation in this Agreement against PEFA, Inc.

14.6. Arbitration and Mediation. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement to

the contrary, the Parties by mutual agreement may agree to mediate or arbitrate any dispute that arises

under this Agreement.

14.7. Third Party Beneficiaries. Except as provided in this Section 14.7, it is specifically

agreed that there are no third-party beneficiaries of this Agreement and that this Agreement shall not
impart any rights enforceable by any Person not a party to this Agreement. Gas Purchaser acknowledges
and agrees that (i) PEFA, Inc. will pledge and assign its rights, title and interests in this Agreement and
the amounts payable by Gas Purchaser under this Agreement (other than amounts payable in respect of
the Project Administration Fee under Section 4.3) to secure its obligations under the Bond Indenture, (ii)
the Trustee shall be a third-party beneficiary of this Agreement with the right to enforce Gas Purchaser’s
obligations under this Agreement, (iii) the Trustee or any receiver appointed under the Indenture shall
have the right to perform all obligations of PEFA, Inc. under this Agreement, and (iv) in the event of a
default in payments by Gas Purchaser under this Agreement, (a) J. Aron may, to the extent provided for
in, and in accordance with, the Receivables Purchase Agreement (as defined in the Indenture), take
assignment from PEFA, Inc. of receivables owed by Gas Purchaser to PEFA, Inc. under this Agreement,
and shall thereafter have all rights of collection with respect to such receivables, and (b) if such
receivables are not so assigned, the Commodity Swap Counterparty shall have the right to pursue
collection of such receivables to the extent of any non-payment by PEFA, Inc. under the Commodity

Swap that was caused by Gas Purchaser’s payment default.

ARTICLE XV

PROJECT MANAGEMENT AND ADMINISTRATION

PEFA, Inc. covenants and agrees that it will use its best efforts to acquire, manage and administer

the Prepaid Project for the benefit of all of the Project Participants. The Project Management Committee
31

MEI 28229525v.1



DRAFT FORM OF GAS SUPPLY AGREEMENT
OCTOBER 2018

will meet from time to time and may make such reports and recommendations to PEFA, Inc. concerning
the administration, management and operation of the Prepaid Project as the Project Management
Committee deems appropriate. PEFA, Inc. agrees with and covenants to Gas Purchaser that PEFA, Inc.
will vigorously enforce and defend its rights under the Project Agreements. Gas Purchaser acknowledges
and agrees that PEFA, Inc. may from time to time enter into amendments of and supplements to the
Indenture and any or all of the other Project Agreements (in accordance with their respective terms) and
that PEFA, Inc. will not be required to obtain the consent or approval of Gas Purchaser in connection with
any such supplement or amendment, as long as such amendments and supplements do not negatively
affect the terms of this Agreement.

ARTICLE XVI

WAIVERS
No waiver by either PEFA, Inc. or Gas Purchaser of any default of the other under this Agreement shall

operate as a waiver of any future default, whether of like or different character or nature.

ARTICLE XVII

SUCCESSION AND ASSIGNMENT

The terms and provisions of this Agreement shall extend to and be binding upon the Parties and their
respective successors, assigns, and legal representatives; provided, however, that neither Party may assign
this Agreement or its rights and interests, in whole or in part, under this Agreement as set forth in this
Article XVII without the prior written consent of the other Party, except that PEFA, Inc. may assign its
interests under this Agreement as described in Section 14.7. Prior to assigning this Agreement, Gas
Purchaser shall deliver to PEFA, Inc. (i) written confirmation from each of Moody’s Investors Service
and Fitch Ratings, provided that such agency has rated and continues to rate the Bonds, that the
assignment will not result in a reduction, qualification, or withdrawal of the then-current ratings assigned
by Moody’s Investors Service or Fitch Ratings, as applicable, to the Bonds; or (ii) written confirmation
from each of Moody’s Investors Service and Fitch Ratings, provided that such agency has rated and

32

MEI 28229525v.1



DRAFT FORM OF GAS SUPPLY AGREEMENT
OCTOBER 2018

continues to rate the Bonds, that the assignee has an outstanding long-term senior, unsecured, unenhanced
debt rating equivalent to or higher than the ratings assigned by Moody’s Investors Service or Fitch
Ratings, as applicable, to the Bonds. Whenever an assignment or a transfer of a Party’s interest in this
Agreement is requested to be made with the written consent of the other Party, the assigning or
transferring Party’s assignee or transferee shall expressly agree to assume, in writing, the duties and
obligations under this Agreement of the assigning or transferring Party. Upon the agreement of a Party to
any such assignment or transfer, the assigning or transferring Party shall furnish or cause to be furnished
to the other Party a true and correct copy of such assignment or transfer and assumption of duties and

obligations.

ARTICLE XVIII
NOTICES

Except as is otherwise specifically provided in this Agreement, any notice, request,
demand, or statement provided for in this Agreement must be given in writing and delivered in
person, by United States mail, or by express courier to the respective Parties at the addresses
shown below or at such other addresses as may hereafter be furnished to the other Party in
writing, and all payments due from Gas Purchaser under this Agreement shall be made by wire
transfer to the account for payments set forth below:

PEFA, INC.:

PEFA, Inc.

[Address]

Attention:

Telephone: D
Cell: .y -
Facsimile: )y -
Email:

33

MEI 28229525v.1



DRAFT FORM OF GAS SUPPLY AGREEMENT
OCTOBER 2018

Payments:

[Trustee]
ABA #:
A/C #:
Re:
Attention:

Gas Purchaser:

Correspondence, notices, billing and payments:

[Address]

Attn:

Telephone: ) -

Facsimile: ) -

Email:

Payments:

By Wire Transfer:
Account No.:
ABA No.

Any notice initially delivered orally as may be permitted under this Agreement shall be
confirmed in writing, and any notice initially delivered by facsimile transmission, email or
other electronic means shall be followed by a hard copy sent by first-class mail or express
courier within two days after transmission of the facsimile transmission, email or other
electronic means.

ARTICLE XIX

CHOICE OF LAW

This Agreement is entered into by PEFA, Inc. pursuant to the authority contained in the Act. This
Agreement shall be interpreted and construed in accordance with the Act and other applicable laws of the
State of lowa, excluding conflicts of law principles which would refer to the laws of another jurisdiction;
[provided, however, that Gas Purchaser’s authority to enter into and perform its obligations under this

Agreement shall be interpreted and construed under the laws of the State of ].

34

MEI 28229525v.1



DRAFT FORM OF GAS SUPPLY AGREEMENT
OCTOBER 2018

ARTICLE XX

MODIFICATIONS

No modifications of the terms and provisions of this Agreement shall be or become
effective except pursuant to and upon the due and mutual execution of a supplemental written
amendment by the Parties.

ARTICLE XXI

COMPUTATIONS

Except as provided herein, all computations related to prices and indices performed under
this Agreement shall be rounded to four decimal places ($0.0000).
ARTICLE XXII

REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

22.1. Representations and Warranties of PEFA, Inc.. PEFA, Inc. hereby makes the

following representations and warranties to Gas Purchaser:

(a) PEFA, Inc. is non-profit corporation duly organized and existing under the
laws of the State of lowa and, in particular, lowa Code Chapter 504, as amended from time to
time, and has the power and authority to own its properties, to carry on its business as now being
conducted, and to enter into and to perform its obligations under this Agreement.

(b) The execution, delivery, and performance by PEFA, Inc. of this
Agreement have been duly authorized by all necessary corporate action of PEFA, Inc. and do not
and will not require, subsequent to the execution of this Agreement by PEFA, Inc., any consent
or approval of the Board of Directors or any officers of PEFA, Inc.

() This Agreement is the legal, valid, and binding obligation of PEFA, Inc.,

enforceable in accordance with its terms, except as such enforceability may be subject to (i) the

35

MEI 28229525v.1



DRAFT FORM OF GAS SUPPLY AGREEMENT
OCTOBER 2018

exercise of judicial discretion in accordance with general principles of equity and (ii) bankruptcy,
insolvency, reorganization, moratorium, and other similar laws affecting creditors’ rights
heretofore or hereafter enacted, to the extent constitutionally applicable.

(d) As of the date of this Agreement, there is no pending or, to PEFA, Inc.’s
knowledge, threatened action or proceeding affecting PEFA, Inc. which purports to affect the
legality, validity, or enforceability of this Agreement.

(e) PEFA, Inc. shall deliver to Gas Purchaser as a condition precedent to Gas
Purchaser’s execution of this Agreement an opinion letter of counsel to PEFA, Inc., in
substantially the form set forth in Exhibit E.

22.2. Representations and Warranties of Gas Purchaser. Gas Purchaser hereby makes the

following representations and warranties to PEFA, Inc.:

(a) Gas Purchaser is a [municipal corporation/gas district/joint action

agency/municipal gas or electric utility] created and existing under the laws of the State of
, and has the power and authority to own its properties, to carry on its business as now

being conducted, and to execute, deliver, and perform this Agreement.

(b) The execution, delivery, and performance by Gas Purchaser of this
Agreement have been duly authorized by the governing body of Gas Purchaser and do not and
will not require, subsequent to the execution of this Agreement by Gas Purchaser, any consent or
approval of the governing body or any officers of Gas Purchaser.

(©) This Agreement is the legal, valid, and binding obligation of Gas
Purchaser, enforceable in accordance with its terms, except as such enforceability may be subject

to (1) the exercise of judicial discretion in accordance with general principles of equity and (i1)

36

MEI 28229525v.1



DRAFT FORM OF GAS SUPPLY AGREEMENT
OCTOBER 2018

bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium, and other similar laws affecting creditors’
rights heretofore or hereafter enacted, to the extent constitutionally applicable.

(d) As of the date of this Agreement, there is no pending or, to Gas
Purchaser’s knowledge, threatened action or proceeding affecting Gas Purchaser which purports
to affect the legality, validity, or enforceability of this Agreement.

(e) Gas Purchaser shall deliver to PEFA, Inc. as a condition precedent to the
effectiveness of this Agreement an opinion letter of counsel to Gas Purchaser in substantially the
form set forth in Exhibit F.

® Gas Purchaser shall deliver to PEFA, Inc. as a condition precedent to the
effectiveness of this Agreement a Federal Tax Certificate in substantially the form set forth in
Exhibit D and a Closing Certificate in substantially the form set forth in Exhibit H.

ARTICLE XXIII

CERTAIN OBLIGATIONS WITH RESPECT TO PEFA, INC.’S BONDS

23.1. Tax-Exempt Status of Bonds. The Bonds will be issued with the intention that the

interest thereon will be exempt from federal taxes under Section 103 of the Code. Accordingly, Gas
Purchaser agrees that it will (a) provide such information with respect to its Gas distribution system as
may be requested by PEFA, Inc. in order to establish the tax-exempt status of the Bonds, and (b) act in
accordance with such written instructions as PEFA, Inc. may provide from time to time in order to
maintain the tax-exempt status of the Bonds. Without limiting the foregoing, Gas Purchaser further
agrees that it will use all of the Gas purchased under this Agreement (i) for a "qualifying use" as defined
in U.S. Treas. Reg. § 1.148-1(e)(2)(iii), (ii) in a manner that will not result in any "private business use"
within the meaning of Section 141 of the Code, and (iii) consistent with the Federal Tax Certificate

attached as Exhibit D. Gas Purchaser agrees that it will provide such additional information, records and

37

MEI 28229525v.1



DRAFT FORM OF GAS SUPPLY AGREEMENT
OCTOBER 2018

certificates as PEFA, Inc. may reasonably request to confirm Gas Purchaser’s compliance with this

Section 23.1.

23.2. Continuing Disclosure. Gas Purchaser agrees to provide to PEFA, Inc.: (a) such

financial and operating information as may be requested by PEFA, Inc. including its most recent audited
financial statements for use in PEFA, Inc.’s offering documents for the Bonds; and (b) annual updates to
such information and statements to enable PEFA, Inc. to comply with continuing disclosure undertakings
under Rule 15(c)2-12 of the United States Securities and Exchange Commission (the "Rule"). Failure by
Gas Purchaser to comply with its agreement to provide such annual updates shall not be a default under
this Agreement, but any such failure shall entitle PEFA, Inc. or an owner of the Bonds to take such
actions and to initiate such proceedings as may be necessary and appropriate to cause Gas Purchaser to
comply with such agreement, including without limitation the remedies of mandamus and specific

performance.

ARTICLE XXIV

EXCHANGES

24.1. General Rule. Gas Purchaser may effectuate an exchange of Delivery Points for Gas
purchased under this Agreement on a daily or Monthly basis under Section 24.2 or Section 24.3;
provided, however, that any failure by a third party to perform its obligations under any such exchange
arrangement shall not relieve Gas Purchaser of its obligations under this Agreement.

24.2. Description of Exchange Agreement. Gas Purchaser may enter into an exchange

agreement with a third party under which Gas Purchaser implements synthetic transportation of the Gas
delivered at the Delivery Point ("Point A") to a delivery point on another pipeline connected with Gas
Purchaser’s system ("Point B"). Under such an exchange agreement, Gas Purchaser would deliver Gas at
Point A to the exchange counterparty and receive delivery of an equivalent value of Gas at Point B from
the exchange counterparty. The equivalent value of Gas at Point B may be taken by Gas Purchaser on the

same Gas Day that Gas is delivered at Point A or at any time after such Gas Day within the same or the

38

MEI 28229525v.1



DRAFT FORM OF GAS SUPPLY AGREEMENT
OCTOBER 2018

next succeeding Month. The transaction described in this Section 24.2 is not in itself a "disqualifying
use" under federal tax law in effect on the date of this Agreement.

24.3. Exchange Transactions Through a Third Party. In addition to an exchange agreement

under Section 24.2, Gas Purchaser may effectuate an exchange of deliveries of Gas at Point A (as
described in Section 24.2) for deliveries at Point B (as described in Section 24.2) by entering into an
agreement to provide the exchange through a third party. Under such an agreement, Gas Purchaser would
arrange for the delivery of Gas to one party ("Party 1") at Point A, and the receipt of Gas from another
party ("Party 2") at Point B, either directly or through a commodity exchange such as the Intercontinental
Exchange ("ICE"), and bring the arrangements with Party 1 and Party 2 to a third party for the third party
to enter into. Gas Purchaser would then enter into an exchange agreement with the third party, as
described in Section 24.2 above. The transaction described in this Section 24.3 is not in itself a
"disqualifying use" under federal tax law in effect on the date of this Agreement.

ARTICLE XXV

INTERPRETATION

25.1. Entirety of Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between

PEFA, Inc. and Gas Purchaser with respect to the sale, delivery, purchase and receipt of the Daily
Contract Quantity under the Prepaid Project, and supersedes any and all prior negotiations,

understandings, or agreements, whether oral or in writing.

25.2. Headings. The headings used throughout this Agreement are inserted for reference

purposes only and shall not be construed or considered in interpreting the terms and provisions of any

Section or Article or the Agreement as a whole.

25.3. Severability. If any Article, Section, term, or provision of this Agreement becomes or is
declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to be illegal, unenforceable, or void, this Agreement shall
continue in full force and effect without said Article, Section, term, or provision; provided, however, that

if such severability materially changes the economic benefits of this Agreement to either Party, the Parties
39

MEI 28229525v.1



DRAFT FORM OF GAS SUPPLY AGREEMENT
OCTOBER 2018

agree to negotiate promptly an equitable adjustment to the provisions of the Agreement in good faith so as
to place the Parties in as close to the same position as is possible under the circumstances as they were

prior to such declaration by the court or other action or event.

25.4. Limited Liability. PEFA, Inc. and Gas Purchaser acknowledge and agree that Gas

Purchaser’s obligations under this Agreement are limited as expressly described in this Agreement and
that PEFA, Inc. has no recourse to any other source of payment from Gas Purchaser except as set forth in
Section 11.4 of this Agreement. PEFA, Inc. and Gas Purchaser acknowledge and agree that Gas Purchaser
has no recourse to any source of payment from PEFA, Inc. under this Agreement except the Trust Estate
as defined in the Indenture, and only to the extent such funds are available to be applied for such purpose

in accordance with the Indenture.

THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY

40

MEI 28229525v.1



DRAFT FORM OF GAS SUPPLY AGREEMENT
OCTOBER 2018

ARTICLE XXVI

COUNTERPARTS

This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, all of which taken together shall
constitute one and the same instrument, and each of which shall be deemed to be an original instrument as
against a Party that has signed it.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the

date hereinabove first written.

[PROJECT PARTICIPANT}

By: Attested By:
Printed Name: Printed Name:

Its: Title:

PEFA, INC.

By: Attested By:

Printed Name: Printed Name:

Its: Title:

41

MEI 28229525v.1



DRAFT FORM OF GAS SUPPLY AGREEMENT
OCTOBER 2018

EXHIBIT A

PRIMARY DELIVERY POINT

[DELIVERY POINT OR POINTS]

Page 1 of 1

MEI 28229525v.1



DRAFT FORM OF GAS SUPPLY AGREEMENT
OCTOBER 2018

EXHIBIT B

DAILY CONTRACT QUANTITIES (MMBTU PER DAY)

[Daily Contract Quantities (MMBtu/Day)]

1 of'1

MEI 28229525v.1



DRAFT FORM OF GAS SUPPLY AGREEMENT
OCTOBER 2018

EXHIBIT C

PROJECT PARTICIPANTS AND THEIR ANNUALIZED
DAILY CONTRACT QUANTITIES

1 of'1

MEI 28229525v.1



DRAFT FORM OF GAS SUPPLY AGREEMENT
OCTOBER 2018

EXHIBIT D

FEDERAL TAX CERTIFICATE

This Federal Tax Certificate is executed in connection with the Gas Sales Contract dated as of
, 2018 (the "Supply Agreement"), by and between PEFA, Inc. and [Project Participant] ("Gas
Purchaser"). Capitalized terms used and not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings given to
them in the Supply Agreement, in the Tax Certificate and Agreement, or in the Indenture.

WHEREAS Gas Purchaser acknowledges that PEFA, Inc. is issuing the Bonds to fund
the prepayment price under the Prepaid Gas Agreement; and

WHEREAS the Bonds are intended to qualify for tax exemption under Section 103 of the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended; and

WHEREAS Gas Purchaser’s use of Gas acquired pursuant to the Supply Agreement and
certain funds and accounts of Gas Purchaser will affect the Bonds’ qualification for such tax
exemption.

NOW, THEREFORE, GAS PURCHASER HEREBY CERTIFIES AS FOLLOWS:

1. Gas Purchaser is a [municipal corporation/gas district/joint action agency/municipal gas
or electric utility] organized under the laws of the State of

2. Gas Purchaser will resell all of the Gas acquired pursuant to the Supply Agreement to its
retail Gas customers within its Gas service area, with retail sales in all cases being made pursuant
to regularly established and generally applicable tariffs or under authorized requirements
contracts. For purposes of the foregoing sentence, the term "service area" means (X) the area
throughout which Gas Purchaser provided Gas transmission or distribution service at all times
during the 5-year period ending on December 31, 2017, and from then until the date of issuance
of the Bonds (the "Closing Date"), and (y) any area recognized as the service area of Gas
Purchaser under state or federal law.

3. The annual average amount during the testing period of Gas purchased (other than for
resale) by customers of Gas Purchaser who are located within the service area of Gas Purchaser
is MMBtu. The maximum annual amount of Gas in any year being acquired
pursuant to the Supply Agreement is MMBtu. The maximum volumes of Gas
being acquired annually pursuant to the Supply Agreement are MMBtu (
MMBtu per day) between ,2019 and , 2049. The maximum annual
amount of Gas which Gas Purchaser otherwise has a right to acquire, as of the Closing Date, is
MMBtu between , 2019 and , 2049. The maximum annual
amount of Gas which Gas Purchaser holds in storage as of the Closing Date is MMBtu.
The sum of (a) the maximum amount of Gas in any year being acquired pursuant to the Supply
Agreement, (b) the amount of Gas which Gas Purchaser otherwise has a right to acquire, and (c)
the annual average amount of Gas which Gas Purchaser holds in storage is between
,2019 and , 2049. Accordingly, the amount of Gas to be acquired
under the Supply Agreement by Gas Purchaser, supplemented by the amount of Gas otherwise

1 of2

MEI 28229525v.1



DRAFT FORM OF GAS SALES CONTRACT
OCTOBER 2018

available to Gas Purchaser as of the Closing Date, during any year does not exceed the sum of (i)

% of the annual average amount during the testing period of Gas purchased (other than for
resale) by customers of Gas Purchaser who are located within the service area of Gas Purchaser;
and (i1) the amount of Gas to be used to transport the prepaid Gas to Gas Purchaser during such
year. For purposes of this paragraph 3, the term "testing period" means the 5 calendar years
ending December 31, 2017, and the term "service area" means (X) the area throughout which Gas
Purchaser provided Gas transmission or distribution service at all times during the testing period
or electric service at all times during the testing period, (y) any area within a county contiguous
to the area described in (x) in which retail Gas customers of Gas Purchaser are located if such
area is not also served by another utility providing Gas services, and (z) any area recognized as
the service area of Gas Purchaser under state or federal law.

4. Gas Purchaser expects to pay for Gas acquired pursuant to the Supply Agreement solely
from funds derived from its Gas distribution operations. Gas Purchaser expects to use current
net revenues of its Gas distribution system to pay for current Gas acquisitions. There are no
funds or accounts of Gas Purchaser or any person who is a Related Person to Gas Purchaser in
which monies are invested and which are reasonably expected to be used to pay for Gas acquired
more than one year after it is acquired. No portion of the proceeds of the Bonds will be used
directly or indirectly to replace funds of Gas Purchaser or any persons who are Related Persons
to Gas Purchaser that are or were intended to be used for the purpose for which the Bonds were
issued.

,2018

[Name]
[Title]

Page 2 of 2

MEI 28229525v.1



DRAFT FORM OF GAS SUPPLY AGREEMENT

OCTOBER 2018
EXHIBIT E
FORM OF OPINION OF COUNSEL TO PEFA INC.
, 2018 [to be dated the date of closing]
[Gas Purchaser]
Re:  Gas Supply Agreement dated , 2018, by and between PEFA, Inc. and [Project

Participant].

Ladies and Gentlemen:

We have acted as counsel to PEFA, Inc. in conjunction with the above-captioned Gas Supply
Agreement (the "Agreement") between PEFA, Inc. and [Project Participant] ("Gas Purchaser").

This opinion is being delivered pursuant to Section 22.1 of the Agreement. Unless otherwise
specified herein, all terms used but not defined in this opinion shall have the same meanings as are
ascribed to them in the Agreement.

In rendering this opinion, we have examined a copy of the Agreement and such records and other
documents as we have deemed necessary and relevant for the purposes of this opinion. In our
examination, we have assumed that [Gas Purchaser] has the right, power, authority and capacity to enter
into the Agreement and that the Agreement has been duly authorized, executed and delivered by [Gas
Purchaser], and we have assumed the genuineness of all signatures (other than those of officers or
representatives of PEFA, Inc.), the authenticity of all documents submitted to us as originals, and the
conformity of all original documents submitted to us as certified or photostatic copies.

As to factual matters, we have relied solely upon the documents described above, the
representations and warranties of PEFA, Inc. contained in the Agreement, the certificate of incorporation
of PEFA, Inc., and various certificates and other documents furnished to us by PEFA, Inc.’s officers and
its Board of Directors and the correctness of any facts stated in any such documents, without undertaking
to verify the same by independent investigation. Except as otherwise stated in this opinion, we have
undertaken no investigation or verification of such matters.

Based on such examinations and assumptions, and subject to the qualifications that follow, we are
of the opinion, on the date hereof, that:

1. PEFA, INC. is a non-profit corporation duly organized and existing under the
laws of the State of lowa and, in particular, [owa Code Chapter 504, as amended from time to
time, and has the power and authority to own its properties, to carry on its business as now being
conducted, and to enter into and to perform its obligations under the Agreement.

2. The execution, delivery, and performance by PEFA, Inc. of the Agreement have
been duly authorized by all necessary corporate action of PEFA, Inc. and do not and will not
require, subsequent to the execution of the Agreement by PEFA, Inc., any consent or approval of
the Board of Directors or any officers of PEFA, Inc.

Page 1 of 4

MEI 28229525v.1



DRAFT FORM OF GAS SALES CONTRACT
OCTOBER 2018

3. The Agreement is the legal, valid, and binding obligation of PEFA, Inc.,
enforceable in accordance with its terms, except as such enforceability may be subject to (i) the
exercise of judicial discretion in accordance with general principles of equity and (ii) bankruptcy,
insolvency, reorganization, moratorium, and other similar laws affecting creditors’ rights
heretofore or hereafter enacted, to the extent constitutionally applicable.

4. As of the date of this opinion, there is no pending or, to our knowledge,
threatened action or proceeding at law or in equity or by any court, government agency, public
board or body affecting or questioning the existence of PEFA, Inc. or the titles of its officers to
their respective offices or affecting or questioning the legality, validity, or enforceability of the
Agreement, nor to our knowledge is there any basis therefor.

5. To our knowledge, after due inquiry of representatives of PEFA, Inc. and
longstanding counsel of PEFA, Inc., the execution and delivery of the Agreement and compliance
by PEFA, Inc. with the provisions thereof will not conflict with or constitute on the part of PEFA,
Inc. a material breach of or default under any agreement or instrument to which PEFA, Inc. is a
party, or violate any existing law, administrative regulation, court order or consent decree to
which PEFA, Inc. is subject.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained above, the foregoing opinions are expressly
made subject to the following exceptions, qualifications, and assumptions:

(a) We express no opinion with respect to the validity or enforceability of any provisions of
the Agreement or any other documents that may be read to require PEFA, Inc. to
indemnify any party.

(b) We express no opinion as to the enforceability of provisions of the Agreement waiving,

directly or indirectly, expressly or impliedly, defenses to obligations or rights granted by
law, where such waivers are prohibited by law or are against public policy or any
provision which is qualified by the phrase "to the extent permitted by law" or words of
similar impact.

() We except from this opinion any provision contained in the Agreement that purports to
prevent any party from raising an affirmative defense thereto, such as estoppels,
illegality, etc., if such affirmative defense arises or is asserted to have arisen out of any
action by any party which has not been brought to our attention, or which purports to
prevent any party from raising a claim of fraud.

(d) We except from this opinion any provision contained in the Agreement that could be
construed as waiving service of process or any applicable statute of limitations defense or
which establishes any right to specific performance.

(e) Our opinion as to enforceability is limited by standards of good faith, fair dealing,
materiality, and reasonableness that may be applied by a court to the exercise of certain
rights and remedies; limitations based on statutes or on public policy limiting a
contracting’s right to waive the benefit of statutory provisions or of a common law right;
and limitations releasing a party from or indemnifying a party against liability for its own
wrongful or negligent act when such release or indemnification is contrary to public
policy.

Page 2 of 4

MEI 28229525v.1



DRAFT FORM OF GAS SALES CONTRACT
OCTOBER 2018

69} Our opinion is limited to the matters stated herein and no opinion may be inferred or
implied beyond the matters expressly stated herein. The opinions expressed in this letter
are given solely for your use and benefit in connection with the transactions referred to
herein and no other person may use or rely upon this opinion letter, nor may it be used or
relied upon in any other transaction which is not related to the transactions referred to
herein without our prior express written consent. This opinion is provided to you as a
legal opinion only and not as a warranty or guarantee on the matter described herein or in
the documents referred to herein.

(2) We are licensed to practice only in the State and we do not hold ourselves out as being
experts in, nor do we express any opinion as to, the laws of any jurisdiction other than the
State. Accordingly, for purposes of the foregoing opinions we have assumed that any
agreement, contract or other instrument that is governed under any laws other than the
laws of the State are enforceable in accordance with the terms of that document under the
laws of such foreign jurisdiction.

(h) The scope of this opinion is limited to those issues and parties specifically considered
herein and no further or more expansive opinion is implied or should be inferred from
any opinion expressed herein. On such basis, any variation or difference in the facts upon
which this opinion is based might affect our conclusions in an adverse manner and make
them inaccurate.

1) In this opinion letter issued in our capacity as counsel to PEFA, Inc., we are opining only
upon those matters set forth herein, and we are not passing upon the accuracy, adequacy
or completeness of any statements made in connection with the execution and delivery of
the Agreement or any federal or state tax consequences arising from the receipt or accrual
of payments under the Agreement.

) No attorney-client relationship has existed or exists between us and anyone other than
PEFA, Inc. in connection with the Agreement by virtue of this opinion.

k) In basing the opinions and other matters set forth herein on "our knowledge," the words
"our knowledge" signify that, in the course of our representation of PEFA, Inc. in matters
with respect to which we have been engaged by them, no information has come to our
attention that would give us actual knowledge or actual notice that any such opinion or
other matters are not accurate or that any of the foregoing documents, certificates, reports
and information on which we have relied are not accurate and complete. The words "our
knowledge" and similar language used herein are intended to be limited to the knowledge
of the lawyers within our firm who have devoted substantive attention to the transaction
contemplated by the Agreement and not to knowledge of the firm generally.

The foregoing opinion is rendered solely for the use and benefit of Gas Purchaser in connection
with the Agreement and may not be relied upon other than in connection with the transactions
contemplated by the Agreement, or by any other person or entity for any purpose whatsoever, nor may it
be quoted in whole or in part or otherwise referred to in any document or delivered to any other person or
entity without the prior written consent of the undersigned. The information set forth herein is as of the
date hereof, this opinion is given as of the date hereof and no opinion is expressed as to the effect of
future applicable laws and court decisions. We assume no obligation, and expressly disclaim any
obligation, to update or supplement this opinion to reflect any facts or circumstances that may hereafter
come to our attention or as to any change in laws that may hereafter occur.

Page 3 of 4

MEI 28229525v.1



DRAFT FORM OF GAS SALES CONTRACT
OCTOBER 2018

Sincerely,

Page 4 of 4

MEI 28229525v.1



DRAFT FORM OF GAS SALES CONTRACT
OCTOBER 2018

EXHIBIT F

FORM OF OPINION OF COUNSEL
TO GAS PURCHASER

, 2018 [to be dated the date of closing]

[PEFA, Inc.]

J. Aron & Company
200 West Street
New York, NY 10282-2198

Goldman Sachs & Company
200 West Street
New York, NY 10282

Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A.
Birmingham, Alabama

[Commodity Swap Counterparty |

Re: Gas Supply Agreement Between [Project Participant] and PEFA,
Inc. dated ,2018

Ladies and Gentlemen:

We are Counsel to [Participant] ("Gas Purchaser").  We are furnishing this opinion to you in
connection with the Gas Supply Agreement between PEFA, Inc. and Gas Purchaser dated as of 1,
2018 (the "Supply Agreement").

Unless otherwise specified herein, all terms used but not defined in this opinion shall have the
same meaning as is ascribed to them in the Supply Agreement.

In connection with this opinion, we have examined originals or copies, certified or otherwise
identified to our satisfaction, of the following:

(a) The Constitution and laws of the State of (the "State") including, as
applicable, acts, ordinances, certificates, articles, charters, bylaws, and agreements pursuant to which Gas
Purchaser was created and by which it is governed;

(b) Resolution No. [ ], duly adopted by Gas Purchaser on [ ] (the
"Resolution") and certified as true and correct by certificate and seal, authorizing Gas Purchaser to
execute and deliver the Supply Agreement;

(© A copy of the Supply Agreement executed by Gas Purchaser; and

Page 1 of 3
MEI 28229525v.1



DRAFT FORM OF GAS SALES CONTRACT
OCTOBER 2018

(d) All outstanding instruments relating to bonds, notes, or other indebtedness of or
relating to Gas Purchaser and Gas Purchaser's natural gas distribution system.

We have also examined and relied upon originals or copies, certified or otherwise authenticated
to our satisfaction, of such records, documents, certificates, and other instruments, and made such
investigations of law, as in our judgment we have deemed necessary or appropriate to enable us to render
the opinions expressed below.

Based upon the foregoing, we are of the opinion that:

1. Gas Purchaser is a [municipal corporation/gas district/joint action agency/municipal gas
or electric utility] of the State, duly organized and validly existing under the laws of the State, and has the
power and authority to own its properties, to carry on its business as now being conducted, and to enter
into and to perform its obligations under the Agreement.

2. The execution, delivery, and performance by Gas Purchaser of the Supply Agreement
have been duly authorized by the governing body of Gas Purchaser and do not and will not require,
subsequent to the execution of the Supply Agreement by Gas Purchaser, any consent or approval of the
governing body or any officers of Gas Purchaser.

3. The Supply Agreement is the legal, valid, and binding obligation of Gas Purchaser,
enforceable in accordance with its terms, except as such enforceability may be subject to (i) the exercise
of judicial discretion in accordance with general principles of equity and (ii) bankruptcy, insolvency,
reorganization, moratorium, and other similar laws affecting creditors' rights heretofore or hereafter
enacted, to the extent constitutionally applicable.

4, No approval, consent or authorization of any governmental or public agency, authority,
commission or person, or, to our knowledge, of any holder of any outstanding bonds or other
indebtedness of Gas Purchaser, is required with respect to the execution, delivery and performance by
Gas Purchaser of the Supply Agreement or Gas Purchaser's participation in the transactions contemplated
thereby other than those approvals, consents and/or authorizations that have already been obtained.

5. The authorization, execution and delivery of the Supply Agreement and compliance with
the provisions thereof (a) will not conflict with or constitute a breach of, or default under, (i) any
instrument relating to the organization, existence or operation of Gas Purchaser, (ii) any ruling,
regulation, ordinance, judgment, order or decree to which Gas Purchaser (or any of its officers in their
respective capacities as such) is subject or (iii) any provision of the laws of the State relating to Gas
Purchaser and its affairs, and (b) to our knowledge will not result in, or require the creation or imposition
of, any lien on any of the properties or revenues of Gas Purchaser pursuant to any of the foregoing.

6. Gas Purchaser is not in breach of or default under any applicable constitutional provision
or any law or administrative regulation of the State or the United States or any applicable judgment or
decree or, to our knowledge, any loan or other agreement, resolution, indenture, bond, note, resolution,
agreement or other instrument to which Gas Purchaser is a party or to which Gas Purchaser or any of its
property or assets is otherwise subject, and to our knowledge no event has occurred and is continuing
which with the passage of time or the giving of notice, or both, would constitute a default or event of
default under any such instrument.

7. Payments to be made by Gas Purchaser under the Supply Agreement shall constitute
operating expenses of Gas Purchaser's utility system payable solely from the revenues and other available

Page 2 of 3
MEI 28229525v.1



DRAFT FORM OF GAS SALES CONTRACT
OCTOBER 2018

funds of Gas Purchaser's utility system as a cost of purchased gas. The application of the revenues and
other available funds of Gas Purchaser's utility system to make such payments is not subject to any prior
lien, encumbrance or other restriction.

8. As of the date of this opinion, to the best of our knowledge after due inquiry, there is no
pending or threatened action or proceeding at law or in equity or by any court, government agency, public
board or body affecting or questioning the existence of Gas Purchaser or the titles of its officers to their
respective offices or affecting or questioning the legality, validity, or enforceability of this Supply
Agreement nor to our knowledge is there any basis therefor.

This opinion is rendered solely for the use and benefit of the addressees listed above in
connection with the Supply Agreement and may not be relied upon other than in connection with the
transactions contemplated by the Supply Agreement, or by any other person or entity for any purpose
whatsoever, nor may this opinion be quoted in whole or in part or otherwise referred to in any document
or delivered to any other person or entity, without the prior written consent of the undersigned.

Very truly yours,

Page 3 of 3
MEI 28229525v.1



DRAFT FORM OF SUPPLY AGREEMENT
OCTOBER 2018

EXHIBIT G

FORM OF REMARKETING ELECTION NOTICE

[PEFA, Inc.]
[Address]

[J. Aron]
[Address]

[Trustee]
[Address]

To the Addressees:

The undersigned, duly authorized representative of the [Gas Purchaser]] (the "Gas Purchaser"), is
providing this notice (the "Gas Remarketing Election Notice") pursuant to the Gas Supply Agreement,
dated as of , 2018 (the "Supply Agreement"), between PEFA, Inc. and the Gas Purchaser.
Capitalized terms used herein shall have the meanings set forth in the Supply Agreement.

Pursuant to Section 5.3(b) of the Supply Agreement, the Gas Purchaser has elected to have its
DCQ for each Gas Day of each Month of the applicable Reset Period remarketed beginning with the
month of [ 120[__], and that the resumption of deliveries in any future Reset Period shall be in
accordance with Section 5.3(e) thereof.

Given this [ ] day of [ 1,20[_].
[GAS PURCHASER]
By:
Name:
Title:
Page 1 of 1

MEI 28229525v.1



DRAFT FORM OF GAS SUPPLY AGREEMENT
OCTOBER 2018

EXHIBIT H

FORM OF CLOSING CERTIFICATE

CLOSING CERTIFICATE OF GAS PURCHASER

, 2018

Re: PEFA, Inc.
Gas Project Revenue Bonds
Series 2018

The undersigned of the ,
(the "Gas Purchaser"), hereby certifies as follows in connection with the Gas Supply
Agreement dated as of 1, 2018 (the "Agreement”) between the Gas Purchaser and PEFA,
Inc. and the issuance and sale by PEFA, Inc. of the above-referenced bonds (the "Bonds") (capitalized
terms used and not defined herein shall have the meanings given to them in the Agreement):

1. Gas Purchaser is a [ ], duly created and validly existing and in good standing
under the laws of the State of (the "State"), and has the corporate power and authority to
enter into and perform its obligations under the Agreement.

2. By all necessary official action on its part, the Gas Purchaser has duly authorized and
approved the execution and delivery of, and the performance by the Gas Purchaser of the obligations on
its part contained in the Agreement, and such authorization and approval has not been amended,
supplemented, rescinded or modified in any respect since the date thereof.

3. The Agreement constitutes the legal, valid and binding obligation of the Gas Purchaser.

4. The authorization, execution and delivery of the Agreement and compliance with the
provisions on the Gas Purchaser's part contained therein (a) will not conflict with or constitute a breach of
or default in any material respect under (i) any instrument relating to the organization, existence or
operation of Gas Purchaser, (ii) any ruling, regulation, ordinance, judgment, order or decree to which Gas
Purchaser (or any of its officers in their respective capacities as such) is subject or (iii) any provision of
the laws of the State relating to Gas Purchaser and its affairs, and (b) will not result in, or require the
creation or imposition of, any lien on any of the properties or revenues of Gas Purchaser pursuant to any
of the foregoing.

5 The Gas Purchaser is not in breach of or default in any material respect under any
applicable constitutional provision, law or administrative regulation of the State or the United States or
any applicable judgment or decree or any loan agreement, indenture, bond, note, resolution, agreement or
other instrument to which the Gas Purchaser is a party or to which the Gas Purchaser or any of its
property or assets are subject, and no event has occurred and is continuing which constitutes or with the



DRAFT FORM OF GAS SUPPLY AGREEMENT
OCTOBER 2018

passage of time or the giving of notice, or both, would constitute a default or event of default in any
material respect by the Gas Purchaser under any of the foregoing.

6. Payments to be made by the Gas Purchaser under the Agreement shall constitute
operating expenses of the Gas Purchaser’s utility system payable solely from the revenues and other
available funds of Gas Purchaser’s utility system as a cost of purchased gas. The application of the
revenues and other available funds of the Gas Purchaser’s utility system to make such payments is not
subject to any prior lien, encumbrance or other restriction.

7. No litigation, proceeding or tax challenge is pending or, to its knowledge, threatened,
against the Gas Purchaser in any court or administrative body which would (a) contest the right of the
officials of the Gas Purchaser to hold and exercise their respective positions, (b) contest the due
organization and valid existence of the Gas Purchaser, (c) contest the validity, due authorization and
execution of the Agreement or (d) attempt to limit, enjoin or otherwise restrict or prevent the Gas
Purchaser from executing, delivering and performing the Agreement, nor to the knowledge of the Gas
Purchaser is there any basis therefor.

8. All authorizations, approvals, licenses, permits, consents and orders of any governmental
authority, legislative body, board, agency or commission having jurisdiction of the matter which are
required for the due authorization of, which would constitute a condition precedent to, or the absence of
which would materially adversely affect the due performance by the Gas Purchaser of its obligations
under the Agreement have been duly obtained.

9. The representations and warranties of the Gas Purchaser contained in the Agreement
were true, complete and correct on and as of the date thereof and are true, complete and correct on and as
of the date hereof.

10. The statements and information with respect to the Gas Purchaser contained in the
Official Statement dated , 2018 with respect to the Bonds, including Appendix B thereto
(the "Official Statement"), fairly and accurately describe and summarize the financial and operating
position of the Gas Purchaser for the periods shown therein, and such statements and information did not
as of the date of the Official Statement and do not as of the date hereof contain any untrue statement of a
material fact or omit to state a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make such
statements and information, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not
misleading.

11. No event affecting the Gas Purchaser has occurred since the date of the Official
Statement which should be disclosed therein in order to make the statements and information with respect
to the Gas Purchaser contained therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not
misleading in any material respect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the undersigned has executed this Certificate on and as of the date first
written above.

[Project Participant]



DRAFT FORM OF GAS SUPPLY AGREEMENT
OCTOBER 2018

Name:
Title:

01527309-3\22170-001



RESOLUTION NO. 15-19

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AMENDMENT TO NATURAL GAS
MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT REGARDING
THE PURCHASE OF NATURAL GAS FROM PEFA, INC.

WHEREAS, the Village of Morton is party to a natural gas management agreement with Utility
Gas Management; and

WHEREAS, the Village of Morton contemplates entering into a natural gas supply agreement
with PEFA, Inc., and

WHEREAS, the Director of Public Works has recommended the amendment of the existing
Natural Gas Management Agreement with Utility Gas Management to extend the term of the natural
gas management agreement to coincide with the expiration of the natural gas supply agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE
VILLAGE OF MORTON, Tazewell County, lllinois, as follows:

1. That the Amendment to Natural Gas Management Agreement Regarding the Purchase
of Natural Gas from PEFA, Inc. attached to this resolution is hereby approved.

2. That the President of the Board of Trustees and Village Clerk are authorized to execute
the agreement on behalf of the Village of Morton.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this resolution shall be in full force and effect upon its passage

and approval.



PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of

Morton, Tazewell County, lllinois, this day of , 2018; and upon roll call the vote

was as follows:

AYES:
NAYS:
ABSENT:
ABSTAINING:
APPROVED this day of ,2018.
President
ATTEST:

Village Clerk



REVISED AGENDA
PLAN COMMISSION OF THE VILLAGE OF MORTON, ILLINOIS
7:00 P.M.
MONDAY, OCTOBER 22, 2018
FREEDOM HALL, 349 W. BIRCHWOOD, MORTON, ILLINOIS

I. Call to Order / Roll Call

IL. Appoint Acting Chairperson for this meeting

III.  Approval of Minutes Regular Meeting — September 24, 2018

IV.  Public Hearing(s):
Petition No. 18-09 SP: Subject property is located at 138 and 140 S. Main St., zoned B-
2. Requested Special Use Permit will allow for mixed use.
Staff Comment: This would be consistent with the plan for our downtown. A Special
Use once granted must commence within one year. This did not happen, so it’s back
again.

Petition No. 18-10 SP: Subject property is located at 4001 W. Jackson St., zoned I-2.
Requested Special Use Permit will allow for open air storage, automobile sales and the
display of new or used automobiles.

Staff Comment: This is a reasonable use of this property. With the natural landscape
that exists and construction of a fence, this should look acceptable.

V. Other Business: None

VI.  Roger Spangler:

VII. Adjourn




MORTON PLAN COMMISSION
MINUTES-OCTOBER 22, 2018

The Plan Commission met on Monday, October 22, 2018, at the Freedom Hall, at 7:00 P.M.,
Acting Chairman Ritterbusch presiding. Present: Zobrist, Ritterbusch, Smock, Deweese,
Knepp, and Fick. Absent: Ferrill, Westlake, and Keach. Also in attendance: Planning and
Zoning Officer Roger Spangler and Attorney Pat McGrath.

Zobrist made a motion to approve Ritterbusch as Acting Chairman in the absence of Chairman
Ferrill. Smock seconded the motion, followed by a vote to approve Ritterbusch as Acting
Chairman.

Knepp Yes Ritterbusch Yes
Fick Yes Zobrist Yes
Smock Yes Deweese Yes

Motion to approve Ritterbusch as acting Chairman: Approved

Zobrist made a motion to approve the minutes of the September 24, 2018 meeting. Knepp
seconded them. With a voice roll call, they were unanimously approved.

Public Hearing(s):

Petition No. 18-09 SP: Subject property is located at 138 and 140 S. Main St., zoned B-2.
Requested Special Use Permit will allow for mixed use. The Petitioner, William Derek Grimm
expressed that he would like to build three apartments above the existing retail space at this
location. The tentative start date for construction would be the spring of 2019. Planning and
Zoning Officer Spangler noted there will be 3 parking spaces which meets the required parking
needs. With no further discussion, a motion to approve was made by Fick. A second to approve
was made by Smock, followed by a vote to approve.

Knepp Yes Ritterbusch Yes
Fick Yes Deweese Yes
Smock Yes Zobrist Yes

Petition No. 18-09 SP: Approved

Petition No. 18-10 SP: Subject property is located at 4001 W. Jackson St., zoned I-2.
Requested Special Use will allow for open air storage, automobile sales and the display of new
or used automobiles. Dan Kniep stated that he would like to display autos and campers for sale
at this location. Mr. Kniep also explained where the fence will be located. It will be an 8’ metal
privacy fence. Mr. Kniep also will be cleaning up the current property.

Keith Kohler from 105 Sycamore Ave. spoke from the public. Mr. Kohler expressed concerns
about the location of the property line that the fence will be installed on. Mr. Kohler questioned
the hours of operation in which Mr. Kniep stated the hours would be either 8 a.m. to 1 p.m. or 8



a.m. to 5 p.m.

Paul Cone from 103 Sycamore Ave spoke from the public. Mr. Cone also expressed concern
that the fence be installed in the correct location, and that it will not be on his property. Mr.
Cone had concerns over the condition of the fence over time. Mr. Cone was concerned that a
metal fence will become rusted and not have a good appearance over time. Mr. Cone was
concerned over the weed growth that could happen under the fence. Mr. Kniep stated he plans
on being a good neighbor. With no further discussion, a motion to approve was made by
Zobrist. A second to approve was made by Deweese, followed by a vote to approve.

Knepp Yes
Fick Yes
Smock Yes

Petition No. 18-10 SP: Approved

Other Business: None

Ritterbusch Yes
Zobrist Yes
Deweese Yes

Roger Spangler: Planning and Zoning Officer Spangler had nothing more to report.

With no further business, Knepp made a motion to adjourn; seconded by Zobrist, followed by a
unanimous voice vote approval. The next regular meeting for the Plan Commission
will be held on Monday, November 26, 2018 at 7:00 P.M.



Petition Number

PETITION FOR ZONING AMENDMENT / SPECIAL USE PERMIT
18-09 5P

Date ALog foes
1. Legal Description: g == At eneEn
\
Street Address: \3<€ B Sodn Mo ke ' Mecr s = W SRV
2. Area of subject property: e <o sq.ft. or Ac.
3. Present land use: C €2 e e e\
Proposed land use or special use: {\‘\\nepé bossa @ C e & / Reasddeal
Requested zoning change: from District to d District
4. Surrounding zoning districts: North Y)D. East @ 9~ South ?) ,1 West 32
5. Subject property is owned by:

Name: M\\\\ P70 BM&L S e e C—:f Y.,
Address: e o | c-_orcs\'wb

Moeson . v Lrego

(If subject property is owned by a trustee, a written statement must be furnished by the trustee, disclosing the names of all
beneficial owners. A change in any of the beneficial owners durin
immediately.)

g the amendment/special use process must be disclosed
6. List names and addresses of all property owners in the petition area (within 250 feet of the area affected by this petition):

o1 S .

7. A statement is attached hereto, indicating why,
for the preservation and enjoyment of substantial pro
detrimental to the public welfare, nor the property of

in our opinion, the amendment or special use requested is necessary
perty rights, and why such amendment or special use will not be

other persons located in the vicinity thereof.
8. Additional exhibits submitted by the petitioner:

FL.c:o@_ U // =L EVATYTTeN

9. Petitioners' Signature:
Name (printed) Address (printed) Signature
Witkine Vet Cootpnpe \o2L  =hgT Coresmand (0% 7 SR R - W

]




SPECIAL USE REQUEST
3-STORY APARTMENT ADDITION
140 5. MAIN ST. MORTON, ILLINOIS

PART OF PINS 06-06-20-233-007 & 06-06-20-233-008

We propose to add a two-story apartment building on top of the existing single-story structure
at 140 S. Main St. in Morton, IL. This structure will be a total of three stories with a roof deck and will be
at or under the 40 feet height allowed by zoning ordinance, similar in height to the adjacent Jefferson
building that was recently constructed at 39°-9”. The structure will contribute to the beautification of
the downtown area of Morton and provide additional housing close to local businesses. As such, we feel
that granting special use is in the best interest of the community.

All applicable city codes, building codes, zoning ordinances, and setbacks will be followed with
respect to this structure. As the neighboring properties zoning and uses are similar in nature, the
proposed apartment addition will complement the downtown area.



PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

PO

Name

CLEARPATH IT SOLUTIONS LLC
MORTONAULLAGE OF

BAUM INVESTMENTS

WASSI GROUP INC, THE
AMERICAN LEGION

EMERALD CITY INVESTMENTS
PARROTT, GAYLE & SAM
PARROTI-GAYLE&-SAM
PARROTI-GAYLE & SAM
FHE-DOWNTFOWN-DINER
GLUECK, WILLIAM A

NATIONAL CITY BANK OF MI/IL
COLDWELL BANKER HONIG-BELL
MCCLELLAN, HARRIET
HOME-INSTEAD-SENIOR-CARE
ZOBRIST, WESLEY M

BRASS BULL TAVERN INC
BENCKENDORF & BENCKENDORF
BENCKENDORF&BENCKENDORFE
BENGKENDORF-&-BENCKENDORF
BUTLER, SUSAN

BUTLERSUSAN
GLASSLOGICING
BUFHERSUSAN

DOUBLE BOGEY INVESTMENTS LLC
MCCLELLAN, HARRIET
BHNKLEYBRUCE

UPSCALE RESALE

RUMMEL, NICHOLAS & LAURA
BAKIRDAN, HAYR| NEZIDE
LEDGESTONE INS GROUP INC
DEJURE FORMAL WEAR
LEDGESTONEINS GROURING
PARROTT, GAYLE & SAM

THE GREAT AMERICAN POPCORN
RAYS HAIRPORT

GRIMM, SARA F

GRIMM, DEAN

ROTH, ANITA
CROWNEREALTY-LLC

GRIMM, SARA F

PARROTT-SAM

DAVID MILLS CPA LLC
BAVIB-MILLS-CRALLC
DESTINATION EXCELLENCE

MORTON-FIREHOUSERIZZA LLC

FRONTIER-COMMUMNICATIONS SITE #

DESHNATON-EXCELLENCE

CARIUS & CARIUS

DESHNAHON-EXCELLENCE
HEARTLAND BANK & TRUST

Address 1

1355 1ST AVE
PO-BOX-28

866 N MAIN ST

13824 W SOMMERFIELD RD
PO BOX 220

25 E ADAMS ST

PO BOX 426

PO-BOX 426

PO-BOX 426

T2 W ADAMS ST

116 W ADAMS ST

80 E JEFFERSON ST

320 WATER STONE WAY
135 E MADISON ST
04 WHERFERSON-ST
95 COMMERCE DR

111 W JEFFERSON ST
101 NE RANDOLPH AVE
101-NE-RANDOLRH AVE
10T NERANDOLRH AVE
100 S MAIN STSTE A
100-S-MAINST STEA
100-SMAINSTSTEC
100-S-MAINSTSTE A
102 W JEFFERSON ST
135 E MADISON ST
TO5-S-MAIN-ST

PO BOX 16

23601 VETERANS RD
117 E MAYWOOD ST
118 S MAIN ST

121 S MAIN ST
122 S PMAINST

149 S MAIN ST

126 S MAIN ST

132 S MAIN ST

138 S MAIN ST

140 S MAIN ST

774 WILDWQOOD DR
2002-FOX-CREEK-RD
215 W JEFFERSON ST STE B
POBOK425

PO BOX 5296
RO-BOX-5295

404 E FRANKLIN ST
ZOES-MAIN-ST
RO-BOX-2440
404-EFRANKLIN-ST

86 FORESTVIEW RD
404-E FRANKLIN-ST

200-W-COLLEGE-AVE
223 S ¥Vnoun S

City
MORTON
MORTON
MORTON
HANNA CITY
MORTON
MORTON
MORTON
MORTON
MORTON
MORTON
MORTON
MORTON
JOLIET
MORTON
MORTON
MORTON
MORTON
PEORIA
PEORIA
REQRIA
MORTON
MERTOMN
MORTON
MORTON
MORTON
MORTON
MORTON
MORTON
MORTON
MORTON
MORTON
MORTON
MORTGN
MORTON
MORTON
MORTON
MORTON
MORTON
GROVELAND
BLOOMINGTON
MORTON
MORTON
MORTON
MORTON
TREMONT
MORFON
SRPOKANE
FREMONT
MORTON
TREMONT

NORMAL
M -’-"ur\

State Zip
IL 61550-2035
H 61550-0028

IL 61550-1602
IL 61536-9606
IL 61550-0220
IL 61550-2056
IL 61550-0426
H 64550-0426
H 81550-0426
13 63550-1802
IL 61550-1802
IL 61550
IL 60431-7963
L 61550-2012
H 615501812
IL 61550-9197
IL 61550-1811
IL 61606-1920
H 61606-1920
S 61606-1520
IL 61550-2063
e 61550-2063
LS 61550-2063
e 64550-2063
IL 61550-1812
IL 61550-2012
H 61550-2029
IL 61550-0016
IL 61550-9579
IL 61550-2885
IL 61550-2030
IL 61550-2029
He 614556-2830
IL 61550-2029
IL 61550-2030
IL 61550-2030
IL 61550-2030
IL 61550-2030
IL 61535-9562

H 617016530
IL 61550-1813
H 615508426
IL 61550-5296
H 61550-529¢6
IL 61568-8773
H 63550-2031
WA 99210-2440

H 61568-8773
IL 61550-1104

S 61568-8773
IL 63761-2552
(Yo

135§
204 s
206 S
208 S
24 E
25 E
110 w
110 w
112 W
112 W
116 W
80 E
101 w
104 W
104 W
107 W
111w
100 N
110 N
110 N
100 S
100 S
100 S
100 S
101 S
105 S
105 S
109 S
113 S
117 S
118 S
121 §
122° S
123 S
126 S
132 S
138 S
140 S
142 5
142 S
150 S
151 S
153 s
155 S
201 s
201 S
210 S
213 S
214 S
2175
223 S

October 2018

Street

1ST AVE

1ST AVE

1ST AVE

1ST AVE
ADAMS ST
ADAMS ST
ADAMS ST
ADAMS ST
ADAMS ST
ADAMS ST
ADAMS ST
JEFFERSON ST
JEFFERSON ST
JEFFERSON ST
JEFFERSON ST
JEFFERSON ST
JEFFERSON ST
MAIN ST
MAIN ST
MAIN ST
MAIN ST
MAIN ST
MAIN ST
MAIN ST
MAIN ST
MAIN ST
MAIN ST
MAIN ST
MAIN ST
MAIN ST
MAIN ST
MAIN ST
MAIN ST
MAIN ST
MAIN ST
MAIN ST
MAIN ST
MAIN ST
MAIN ST
MAIN ST
MAIN ST
MAIN ST
MAIN ST
MAIN ST
MAIN ST
MAIN ST
MAIN ST
MAIN ST
MAIN ST
MAIN ST
MAIN ST

Apt

STEC

STEC
STEB

-A
-A



12-6 |

61-2"2 j 6-4"

12'-1 174"

22-0"

14'-

149/18"

19-4%

37-4%
I\

18'-0"

NORTH

14 FIRSTFLOORPLAN

SCALE: 1/8"= 1-0"

AT EACH NING WALL

WALL FTG 3'-0" WIDE X 1'-0"
THICK N/ (3) #5 LONG t(3) #
4 BARS TRANSVERSE. T/
FTGEL (-)3'-4" MIN.

12" CMU GROUTED SOLID W/
*S5e 16 0OC.

UNEXCAVATED

HELICAL PIER ¢ BRACKET SHALL BE INSTALLED @ 6'-0" O.C-
ALONG BASEMENT WALL AS INDICATED. PIER ¢ BRACKET
SHALL HAVE A SERVICE LOAD CAPACITY OF 23 KIPS.
PROVIDE FACTOR OF SAFETY = 2.0. SUBMIT SEALED
CALCULATION ¢ DNGS OF HELICAL PIER ¢ BRACKET BY IL
LICENSED STRUCTURAL ENGINEER.

BASEMENT

SEE DETAIL 13/52.1 FOR FOUNDATION

NORTH

1 6 BASEMENT FLOOR PLAN

SCALE: 1/8"=1-0"

8" CMU GROUTED
SOLIDW/ #5 ¢
16" CcC.

1'-0" THICK
ELEVATOR PAD W/ #

512" OC.EACHNAY,
3"FROM BOTTOM.

'l (
S—
1 -1
] ]
-—\"| - 1
2‘ i GARAGE: 0 |
ge\' 2x4 e 16"0CC. N/ 1 1
X ¥ 7/16 EXT.5THG. & '
% 4 5/8" GYF. BD. |
z <y ON INT. H
* il 9 1
1 & . f
y S S !
; i s
4 | ™ "
th b |
~al]s-1yfE-a|. ‘
“iT Mecev | ¥ .
@) |
7 [y I L]
1 'S SEEDETAILS 544 oal ;
j 1% T3 oNsHEET 52,1, RS \.— STAIR/DECK |
| Y REVIEA ALL'S' <. ! it ] " Rgus__\r?iéggAM\N(z & )
ot g 2 ¢ JOIST, ¢ COLUMN
; _\Z SHEETS FOR REQ. = % L 5 5 josTecou i !
1 8y Bt ™ 5 | cHEETEz3 & |
g : A !
1 vl ¥ - ]
1 o | a_ # --_-"—_____]-"_]

| PROPERTY LINE IS APPROX

WALLFTG 1'-0" THICK X 2'-0°
WIDE W/ (2) 45 BARS LONG ¢
24 BARS & 60" OC.
TRANSVERSE. ; MIN, -3'-&"
BELOW GRADE.

FND WALL 8" CMU GROUTED
SOLIDWITHES @ 48'0C.

12,
12,
14,

GENERAL NOTES:

CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY ALL EXISTING CONDITIONS
AND FIELD MEASUREMENTS PRIOR TC BEGINNING WORK
OR FABRICATING MATERIALS,

EXTERIOR DIMENSIONS ARE TO CUTSIDE OF SHEATHING
TO OUTSIDE OF SHEATHING.

INTERIOR DIMENSIONS ARE TC INTERICOR SIDE OF
FRAMING ON EXTERIOR WALLS AND TO NORTH AND EAST
SIDE OF FRAMING FOR INTERIOR WALLS.

ALL OPENINGS ARE DIMENSIONED TC CENTER OF
OPENING, ROUGH OPENINGS SHALL BE BASED ON WINDOW
MANUFACTURER LISTED ROUGH OPENINGS,

OFENINGS ARE NOTED BY SIZE OF OPENING IN INCHES.,
264215 A WINDON APPROXIMATELY 3'-0" X 36",

ALL PENETRATIONS 4 JOINTS IN FIRE RATED
CONSTRUCTION MUST BE TREATED WITH A UL RATED
PENTRATION ASSEMBLY FOR WALL RATING INDICATED IN
DOCUENTS. .
CONTRACTOR |9 RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL MEPFP AND
CIVIL DESIGNS AND RESPONSIBLE FOR COORDINATING
ALL TRADES.

PROVIDE ANY NECESSARY BLOCKING REQUIRED FOR
ANY WALL HUNG EQUIPMENT.

CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR PATCHING ANY
EXISTING FINSHES IN THE BASEMENT AND 157 FLOOR TO
COMPLETE THE WORK INDICATED,

ALL INTERIOR WALLS SHALL BE 2X4 WOOD STUDS @ 16"
O.C. W/ 5/8" GYPSUM WALL BOARD ON EACH SIDE
UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

PROVIDE MINERAL WOOL IN 2ND FLOOR JOIST SPACE ON
EITHER SIDE OF BLOCKING/RIM BOARD BELOW 1 HR
RATED DEMISING WALL.

ALL INTERIOR FINISHES BY OWNER.

MATERIAL COLOR/FINISH SELECTIONS BY OWNER.
DETAILS 4 PLANS MAY NOT COMMUNICATE ALL OF THE
REQUIREMENTS TO COMPLETE WORK. CONTRACTOR
SHALL COORDINATE THE REGUIREMENTS OF ALL
MATERIALS FOR A COMPLETE INSTALLATION AND
PROJECT.

PLAN FOUNDATION NOTES:

FIRST FLOOR ELEVATION IS CONSIDERED O'-0";
CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY EXISTING BASEMENT
FLOORTO 15T FLOOR ELEVATION BASED ON EXISTING
CONDITION, CIVIL ELEVATION HAS NOT BEEN
ESTABLISHED.

COORDINATE ALL FOOTING ELEVATIONS WITH REQUIRED
FINISHED GRADE ELEVATIONS. CONTRAGTOR |19
RESFPONSIBLE FOR DETERMINING ALL FINISHED GRADE
ELEVATIONS.

ALLONABLE SOIL BEARING PRESSURE IS 1000 PSF, PER
SOILS REFORT BY WHITNEY & ASSOCIATES DATED JUNE
15,20117.

INDICATES PAD FOOTING MARK, SEE SCHEDULE.
INDICATES COLUMN MARK. SEE SCHEDULE.

REMOVE EXIST. SLAB AS REQUIRED FOR INSTALLATION
OF FOUNDATIONS, REPLACE WITH 4" CONCRETE SLAB,
REINFORCE NITH 6X6 N2.1XIN2,1 WAF AT MID HEIGHT.
ALL EXISTING & NEN UTILITIES SHALL NOT BE LOCATED
UNDER COLUMN FOURDATIONS,

INDICATES COLUMN MARK, SEE SCHEDULE.

SUBMIT SEALED CUT SHEETS, CALCULATIONS 4
INSTALLATIONS PROCEDURES, BY A LICENSED ILLINOIS
STRUCTURAL ENGINEER,

ALL WALL FOOTINGS SHALL BE CENTERED ON INALL
CENTERLINES UNLESS INDICATED BY AN OFFSET
DIMENSION,

ALL FOOTINGS SHALL REST ON UNDISTURBED SOIL OR.
COMPACTED FILL WHICH HAS A MIN. ALLOWABLE BEARING
CAFICITY EQUAL TO OR GREATER THAN THAT SHOWN ON
THE FOUNDATION PLAN,

ALL EXCAVATIONS FOR STRUCTURES SHALL BE KEPT
DENATERED DURING CONSTRUCTION OPERATIONS UNTIL
BACKFILL IS IN PLACE. PROVISIONS SHALL BE MADE TO
PREVENT THE BOTTOM OF ALL EXCAVATIONS FROM
FREEZING OR FLOODING AT ALL TIMES,

ALL CONCRETE SLABS SUPPORTED ON SOIL SHALL BE
PROTECTED AGAINST FROST ACTION AND DANGERS
FROM HEAVING BY INSULATING THE SLAB WITH A LAYER
OF INSULATING MATERIAL THICK ENOUGH TO PREVENT
FROST PENETRATION.

KEACH

ARCHITLCTURAL DESICN, INC.

99 COMMLRCL DRIVE
MCORTON, ILLINCIS 61550
PH: 309-263-4545

FAX: 309-263-3515

EXPIRES: 11/30/18
DATE: 09/13/18

[pem e e e mesm

BID DOCUMENTS

PROJECT NAME:

GRIMM MIXED
USE

140 S. Main St.
Morton, IL 61550

SHEET TITLE:

FIRST AND
BASEMENT/
FOUNDATION
FLOOR PLAN

DATE: SEPTEMBER 13, 2018
PROJECT NO. 17021
SHEET NUMBER

A1.1




GENERAL NOTES:

15 CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY ALL EXISTING CONDITIONS
AND FIELD MEASUREMENTS PRICR TO BEGINNING WORK
OR FABRICATING MATERIALS,
2. EXTERIOR DIMENSIONS ARE TO OUTSIDE OF SHEATHING
TC QUTSIDE OF SHEATHING. ARCHITECTURAL DESICN, INC

3 INTERIOR DIMENSIONS ARE TO INTERIOR SIDE OF
FRAMING ON EXTERIOR WALLS AND TO NORTH AND EAST

SIDE OF FRAMING FOR INTERIOR WALLS, 99 COMMIRCE DRIVE
4. ALL OPENINGS ARE DIMENSIONED TG CENTER OF I‘thx%;lﬁ:ﬂs 61550
OPENING, ROUGH OFENINGS SHALL BE BASED ON WINDOW Fiselis i

MANUFACTURER LISTED ROUGH OPENINGS,
5. OPENINGS ARE NOTED BY SIZE OF OPENING IN INCHES.
L. 3642 15 A NINDOW APPROXIMATELY 3'-0" X 35"
£1-6 & ALL PENETRATIONS 4 JOINTS IN FIRE RATED
20-8" =9 4 22-1" 16-8" CONSTRUCTION MUST BE TREATED WITH A UL RATED
SHEAR WALL STRONG PENTRATION ASSEMBLY FOR WALL RATING INDICATED IN

WALL PANELS: SEE DOCUENTS,

DETAILS 4,86416 ON 52.2 5 i 7. CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL MEPFP AND
TN m— T ) CIVIL DESIGNS AND RESPONSIBLE FOR COORDINATING

= rn) | — g ALL TRADES,

o . oA o & PROVIDE ANY NECESSARY BLOCKING REQUIRED FOR

HATCHEN T i ¥ LAUNDRY 1 ANY NALL HUNG EQUIPMENT.

e ] 9. CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR PATCHING ANY
ERNE, H EoE EXISTING FINISHES IN THE BASEMENT AND 157 FLOOR TQ
COMPLETE THE WORK INDICATED,

crsmctagrsea

5-4"

- o

PANTR

80"

L capmet

. 10, ALL INTERIOR NALLS SHALL BE 2X4 NOOD STUDS 8 16"
O.C. W/ 5/8" GYPSUM WALL BOARD ON EACH SIDE
UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED. e

11. PROVIDE MINERAL WOGL IN 2ND FLOGR JOIST SPACE ON EXPIRES: 11/30/18
EITHER SIDE OF BLOCKING/RIM BOARD BELOW 1 HR DATE: 08/13/18
RATED DEMISING WALL.

12, ALL INTERIOR FINISHES BY OWNER.

13. MATERIAL COLOR/FINISH SELECTIONS BY OWNER.

14. DETAILS ¢ PLANS MAY NOT COMMUNICATE ALL OF THE

STAR/DECK REQUREMENTS TO COMPLETE NORK, CONTRACTOR

SHALL COORDINATE THE REQUIREMENTS OF ALL

I
ng’r ?‘55&,’;:6 MATERIALS FOR A COMPLETE INSTALLATION AND
i PROJECT.

DETAILS SEE
SHEET 2.3

] =xmr=1 Kl B _" 7 BID DOCUMENTS

: 404" 18'-7" 6-1" orzxaone
65-0"

4-2 1/4'11 &-11" sk, B-Y -1y
T T

COLMNS EXTEND THRGUDR 75 PRECAST BELOM (T rnd FARTY maLi BELOR]
NP ORM BEAM F, AT ARCH TXPRES SOM FOR ENTRE LENG
e 3

T2 2x10
pries

.{

SEEBTRUCTLRAL DETALS 135418414 OWS2

S43/4" 5.4 3,4 3
GALLERY 4-53/8" | 1-43/8" | 6-3/8" L 1-23/4" | ilb-s /2

SAUNA

-5
\
i
|
257
Eii

£

i

3¢ sots

- -4 - i
x
o
m
=y
8
3RO L. ROOF DECK
uP
3
L
ax0 cw1s
e 18 0 T
f3)ax120P 83

22 8TEPS

BATH <7 it

DN
)
'y
/4
L
—

&-103/47 1-2 ¥72" 1
-
]
m e
0
i -
kd
113/8
'w

FLOOR JOISTS: 14" TJI210 @ 16" OC.

INTER. SHEAR WALL: SEE
DETAILS 10415 ONS2.2

| =t At el

NORTH PROJECT NAME:
1 4 THIRD FLOOR PLAN

SCALE: 1/8"= 1-0"

GRIMM MIXED

PLAN STRUCTURAL NOTES: USE

DEMISING WALL BEARING: 1 HR RATE

LOAD BEARING
2x6 8 1 E- OC.ERC-1CLIPS 1. FIRST FLOOR ELEVATION IS CONSIDERED 0-C7; 140 S. Main St.

N/ 5/8"GYP &YP.BD.EA, SIDE CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY EXISTING 157 FLOOR TO 28
5 172" MINERAL WOOL FLOOR ELEVATION BASED ON EXISTING CONDITION, Morton, IL 61550
SOUND MATT - 1 SIDE CIVIL ELEVATION HAS NOT BEEN ESTABLISHED,

42-10"
SHEAR WALL STRONG
WALL PANELS: SEE
DETAILS 4, 8416 ONS2.2

1-&

UL DESIGN #-U3 11 OR U327 2. 3/4" APA RATED SHEATHING SPANNING CONTINUGUSLY T S m—— |
ACROSS 4 JOISTS (MIN) FASTEN DECK TO SUPPORTS w/
0.148'® x 3" L.&. COMMON NAILS @ 6" O.C. AT PANEL SHEET TITLE:
GARAGE: EDGES AND AT SUPPORTS.
WD. TRUSSES @ 24" OC.
W/ 5/8"ROOF STHG.; “—————  INDICATES DIRECTION OF SPAN.
UNDERLAYMENT N/
ARCH. KD LAMIN. SHINGLES - 3. EXTERIOR WALL & BEARING WALL STUDS 2x6 & 16 oc.
RIDGE VENT TYPICAL UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE, SECOND AND

S/12PITCH - THIRD FLOOR

=D DENOTES HEADER MARK. SEE HEADER SCHEDULE,
PLAN

T240
[=3]

BEDROOM

I Eg ==y
E.ag 3141_ F-2 3,4 ot AT £ isaq /41'

HALL

5'-4"
.EN-E] HHM2.
13-93/4
[\
Y
.
o
) o
1
.
=3 o
)
Q
\\

KITEHEN

niaxae
Bn2e

LIVING/DINING |

2-10

Tars
L1}

/PN STRUCT NOTE #2

2
01575 ¢ —
Teoc

I

ELE)

fa)ax10

B34

B * INIPCATES LOCATION OF SIMPSON TIE, MSTC 40

18-

L H.
"’ ' A W/(20)0.0148" @ x 3 W L6G.

FLNSTRUCT NOTE 12

&. EXTERIOR SHEAR WALL CONSISTS OF 2X& DOUGLAS FIR
LARCHSTUDS @ 16" OC. W/ 189/32" STRUCT. SHEATHING
=, STAIR/DECK ON ONE FACE OF WALL WITH 0.148°P x 3' L& NALS @6
RAILING, FRAMING O.C. AT PANEL EDGES SUPFORTS AT FIELD OF PANEL.
JOIST, 8 COLUMN T INTERIOR SHEAR WALL CONSISTS OF 2X4 DOUGLAS FIR DATE: SEPTEMBER 13, 2018
DETAILS SEE LARCHSTUDS @ 16" C.C. W/ 14/32" STRUCT. SHEATHING
SHEET 52.3 ONEA FACE OF WALL WITHO.148"'® x 3" L.6. NAILS g&"
O.C. AT PANEL EDGES SUPFORTS AT FIELD OF FPANEL.
DOUBLE PLATE SHALL HAVE MIN OF (9) 0. 148" & x 3" LG,

ssmad 26%% oqd1s
D

2xp Jorsts
DATSCTS

4'-63/47]

i LIVING/DINNG

niaao

wor . mo e
2257EPS
|
A
2P JOBTS
10—
18)2x120FLu3

=1
4
il\
Z
o

14'-1 174"

v
sdd1e TE3F ssnza
=0

NAILS BETWEEN SPLICES OF TOP FLATE.
4.  2x8 LEDGERS TO BE ANCHORED USING (2) SIMPSON PROJECT NO. 17021
o STRONGTIE SDS25300 8 EACH WALL STUD,
28 65-0 10. 2X8& LEDGERS TO BE ANCHORED USING (1) 14" & HILTI HLC
INTER. SHEAR AALL: SEE i " SLEEVE ANCHOR & 16" O.C. IN MASONRY WALL. SHEET NUMBER
DETAILS 10615 ONS2.2 FLOOR JOISTS: 14'TJI 2106 1670C. 11, ALL 2x8 JOISTS SHALL USE SIMPSON STRONGTIE LUZ6&
JOIST HANGER,
12, SSW# INDICATES SIMPSON STRONGTIE STEEL STRONG- A 1 2
L]

(a13x12 2Pz

32"

NORTH IALL.
@ 1 6 SECOND FLOOR PLAN

SCALE: 1/8"= 1'-0"




BISON WOOD TILES

i PEDESTAL ROOF

DECK SYSTEM OR
3'-0‘H APPROVED EQUAL

FERIME

TER CLOSURE

REQD, SECURED &
PARAFETS

37-4"

[

TAPERED INSULATION CRICKET -
PROVIDE AT EQUIP. CURES
12°Xé" THRU NALL SCUPFER,
16°X16"X8" CONDUCTOR

HEAD & 6°X4" DONWN SPOUT,
EACH SIDE

2" BASE LAYER OF POLYISO,

INSUL. W/ TAFERED INSULATION TO
CREATE 1/4"SLOPE, EFFECTIVE

S 7
1 ll M1 ~ R-VALUE R30
T T / —
: ‘ rse
B [ T 1
Ly i 60 MIL 207 FULLY
il ADHERED WHITE EPDM
il MEMBRANE ROOF OVER
w 1/2" COVER BOARD N o
s B3
i = A - ALUM. GUTTER § DS,
T 7
HOT TUB ,_‘u_ : ’~\
i il "J TAPERED RIDGE e —
-] & resom
. FULL TILE AT
_i? o PERIMETER i .a— STAIR/DECK
« | ! 1 RAILING, FRAMII
- T B3 e W JOIST £ COLUM
| 7 e s S T | il DETAILLS SEE
| I T [ AL [ ] ] SHEET 52.3
| | I | | ] T T T ‘ [ 3
\ N A [l I E— 1
| B ) i N O - | 1 L)) I I I T=1_1t]
— =
L 18-0" . 16-0" | 36-0 | . )
"rRooF JoI5T: 167 ROOF JOIBT: 16" T ROOF JOI5T: 16" —™ nrsiaERa
TI210e 16"0C. Td21ces' oc. Td2108 16 OC.
[}
LIGHT NEIGHT CAST
O MAX. WRAP/RETURN CORNICE 1
4 AX . sTonecoRrNcE BRICK ARCUND CORNER 3-0°,
NORTH EACH SIDE.
ROOF PLAN T/0 FARAPET WOOD
1 S 2 L E AR L h PRE-FABRICATED
SCALE: 1/8"= 1-0 ; COPING CAP
#/OLONPA S
ELEV.-39-4"
THIN BRICK VENEER /— FIBER CEMENT LAP
SIDING
ARCHED SOLDIER
COURSE
ROOF TRUSS BRG PVC/FIBER CEMENT
¢ ELEV.- 33-0" P WINDOW TRIM
T/O WINDOW 8-0" AFF. h’* SR é
1 ALUM. CLAD NoOoD
ARCHER TRANSOM o — WINDOR/DOOR, TYF.
ABOVE 3RD FLOOR s L]
EAST WINDONS ONLY — e
| AH
LIGHT WEIGHT CAST ] ]
STONE SILL H H ] ——— PRE-FAB./PRE-FIN.
: H—] ALUM. RAILING
 —— —
" T/0 THRD FLOOR s
ELEV.-21-10 172" S —
T/O WINDOW £-0" AFF. ===
SOLDIER COURSE S == o] | - -
=== = oo | S — PRE-FABRICATED
e —c s ENGINEERED ANNING
4 T/OSECOND FLOOR emoooo S SYSTEM
Y ELEV.-10-10 1/2° ‘ J /[
| |
1 I 1 I
EXISTING CONSTRUCTION |
TO REMAIN i
. T/OFIRSTFLOCR ;[
Y ELEv.-0-0"

&

EAST ELEVATION

SCALE: 1/4"= 1-0"

KEACH

ARCHITECCTURAL DESIGN, INC

99 COMMIRCE DRIVE
MORTON, ILLINCIS 61550
PH: 309-263-4545

TAX: 309-263-3515

EXPIRES: 11/30/18
DATE: 09/13/18

| scvas e s rum e e s

BID DOCUMENTS

PROJECT NAME:

GRIMM MIXED
USE

140 S. Main St.
Morton, IL 61550

SHEET TITLE:

ROOF PLAN &
ELEVATION

DATE: SEPTEMBER 13, 2018

PROJECT NO. 17021

SHEET NUMBER

A1.3




PETITION FOR ZONING AMENDMENT / SPECIAL USE PERMIT
Petition Number _ /8 /O 3 P Date ! /0 - 3 /g

. Lgel Bessiion; . IOl S 7 7‘29(/2‘/1/(:’,4«4{% /l/h//c,f a hel
NE //174 Set [ Lo T (Exc N fmd\v-#//éofdoﬁéff

Street Address: 6(100 / w _) [N 6&:5‘6314 _S) _ W(O Z’bd / L-' /
Area of subject property: /’& {/‘g sq.ft. or /? 3 7 Ac.
3. Present land use: gj‘? QS, ’f' C%/\/’ Y ’C-C ) ‘# / 78 g ’#7 6215,

Proposed land use or special use: %/’/"‘C, 57@‘/@ q&/d;— ?6? &N

Requested zoning change: from I /2 o District iOZ:: g %ée Lﬂ/ (—(,Se—'{)u,tnct

[

4. Surrounding zoning districts: North "’jA East R-1 South E) -3 West /A
5. Subject ro erty is owned by:
Nathe: /f I M //&,ﬂé/ Farms (L4 A @’?,«/ p. 4 #CSS

Address: / 10, 2 /—W ZQ’ Df' I
_ﬁgfg/’l wgton 1L . L/ ST/

(If subject property is OMed by a , trudtee, a written statement must be furnished by the trustee, disclosing the names of all
beneficial owners. A change in any of the beneficial owners during the amendment/special use process must be disclosed

immediately.)

of all property owners in the petition area (within 250 feet of the area affected by this petition):

6. Lis énames and addresses
_See g4 H‘czc-)f\c’& / iy -

7. A statement is attached hereto, indicating why, in our opinion, the amendment or special use requested is necessary
for the preservation and enjoyment of substantial property rights, and why such amendment or special use will not be
detrimental to the public welfare, nor the property of other persons located in the vicinity thereof.

8. Additional exhibits submitted by the petitioner:

9. Petitioners' Signature:
Name (printed Address (printed) Si

3¢) Dehat fve
055 /(,/,2 Tde Bail Do Q/// ?f/

_Mzéz%z‘zmﬁ LIST!




7. 1am asking for a special use permit for outdoor storage and sales at 4001 West Jackson St. | will be fencing in the
east side of the property for outside storage. | will be selling outside the fence on the south and west sides. All
amendments/special uses will be non-detrimental to the area. They will actually clean up the area and beautify it. This
will also help with congestion at my current location, 340-342 Detroit Avenue. Thank you in advance for your
consideration.



B S
S,

]

/8 Fence




s S o e 8 L i

m>< >.._N_m_>wm

== ﬂ\ I‘Jiwi s

F e

>< mwwm_n_>0

wwﬁ |
i | = AN
EE . JHONVOAS | Rl -
. EeeaeT R Shil oo o |
Rl el el L TUOWYOAS | |
e | e | |

1O MOTIIM

Suale.cT
ProeerTy

e AN S IR AT P AR T

‘KAVE.



PO

Name
STEEL A SIGN LLC

HOFFER, FARMS LLC ALICE M

BAC LOCAL #6
KRUMHOLZ, RON

BEALERS-COMMERCIA

Address 1

43 NEWPORT CT

C/O CARL ROSS

3691 COUGAR DRSTE A
202 TWIN OAKS CT

City

MORTON
WASHINGTON
PERU

EAST PEORIA

AAORTOM.
A~

State Zip

IL 61550-3039
IL 61571-2270
IL 61354-9302
IL 61611-4646

Tl CALCA A4S0
OT>U4oTd

PEAtERS-CoHvHVIERE

CONE, PAUL & BETH
KOHLER, KEITH W

J
e

AUTORODY
AoToeooy

WICKS, LOUIS & KIMBERLY
WEBB, PAULA & NORM

VINCENT, PEGGY

CAVITT, JENNIFER R

400H-WHAEKSON-STSTE2
103 SYCAMORE AVE
105 SYCAMORE AVE
107 SYCAMORE AVE
201 SYCAMORE AVE
203 SYCAMORE AVE
205 SYCAMORE AVE

oo

MORTON
MORTON
MORTON
MORTON
MORTON
MORTON

I 61550-1036
IL 61550-1036
L 61550-1036
IL 61550-1038
IL 61550-1038
IL 61550-1038

4000 W
4001 W
4005 W
4009 W
4009 W
103
105
107
201
203
205

Street

JACKSON ST
JACKSON ST
JACKSON ST
JACKSON ST
JACKSON ST
SYCAMORE AVE
SYCAMORE AVE
SYCAMORE AVE
SYCAMORE AVE
SYCAMORE AVE
SYCAMORE AVE

Apt



